I 1 11 | ™

velerielD

Telefield International (Holdings) Limited
b 2 E PR IZAX A R > F)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(REAEEEF A LA ERL F)
Stock code BB 1EE: 1143

" ® 2012 =%

" ANNUAL REPORT !




Contents

Corporate Information
NGIESPE!

Financial Highlights

HBERHE

Chairman’s Statement

TEMmEE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE SR R AT

Corporate Governance Report
hEERRE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERARERERENE

Report of the Directors
EEEgWRE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BN R BN E

Consolidated Income Statement
ma R

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeEEHREE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MBRRER

Statement of Financial Position

IR R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BARGEHE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RAERSRER

Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS HRER M

Five-Year Financial Summary

RFEMBHRE

Information for Investors

REHER

5 42

2-3

20-29
30-35
36-47
48-49

50

51
52-53
54

55
56-57
58-146
147

148



Corporate Information
NEEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen

Ms.

Fok Pui Yin

Mr. Lee Kai Bon

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

Dr. Xue Quan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry CPA

LEGAL ADVISORS

AS TO HONG KONG LAWS

D.S. Cheung & Co.

29/F., Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG OFFICE
Units 609-610
6/F, Bio-Informatics Centre

No.2 Science Park West Avenue

Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

2

Telefield International (Holdings) Limited * 2 EIF#Z R H R A 7 Annual Report 3k 2012

HITES
BEREE(EE)
ERNFEE
REERFEE
EMELLT

BYFHITES
RS RBEEE
BmaEt
EEREL

NEWE
ER N HE CPA

SRR
EBERLEE
RSB ERAT
B

ELF
HTITE565%

R RITBET 291

AMRERE
Clifton House
75 Fort Street
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

EEBMER
B

S H
HAEREZER
RHEAREFE25%
EPEFAR D
61£609-610F



MAINLAND OFFICE

No.15 North Guangcong Commercial Street
First Industrial Zone

Zhuliao Town, Baiyun District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITORS

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Caroline Centre
Lee Gardens Two

28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited
48/F, One Exchange Square

Central

Hong Kong

Corporate Information

nEER

A ith B R

H

BRA

B
HERMEHE
F-I¥RE
BRI 155

FEAERRIT
EITRIT(BR)ERA A
ERIRIT(BE)ERAT
BB LSELRITERDA

BB
HFIGEE (BB Qe EBAm
RS AT

B

k7 9

B FiE285%

FIE 28

=P L20E

ERER
BEES(FB)AR AR
B8

IR

R 5 E5—Hj481E

Annual Report F %R 2012 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited R EERERER AR 3



Financial Highlights

LR

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEBT  BREEEAEHN

2012 2011
—E——F = — T
Revenue WA 1,458.2 1,309.4
Profit for the year FEHA 19.5 60.5
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RABEE AEIEEF 23.3 57.1
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRREREFGBL) 5.67 14.15
Dividend per share — Proposed final (HK cents) BRI S —EEAREGE) 2.00 3.00
Average inventory turnover day (days) FHEERERE(X) 74.4 63.4
Trade receivable turnover day (days) FEWE 5 ERFEERE(CR) 47.8 46.9
Trade payable turnover day (days) FERHE SRR A RE(X) 42.3 45.6
Profit attributable to Revenue
owners of the Company WA
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the annual
results of Telefield International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012 (the “Year”).

During the year, there were still several issues which threatened to
derail the global economic recovery and which dampened the overall
consumption sentiment. Under such an uncertain environment, consumer
electronics brands became more cautious on their forecasting of
market needs as well as new product launches, resulting in frequent
postponement and delivery schedule changes of their orders that already
placed with the Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) providers.
In addition, as increasing production costs particularly wages in China
continued to pose challenges, the Group was not immune from such
unfavourable macroeconomic trends and underwent a challenging period
in its business operations.

Nevertheless, leveraging the proven strategies of our EMS and distribution
businesses, we were able to achieve a relatively balanced growth and
report an increase in total turnover for the year. Besides, our strategic
focus on the niche product markets, where we enjoy higher-than-average
margins, and exercise a higher degree of cost controls, contributed to a
healthy gross profit margin for the Group. The Board recommended a final
dividend of HK cents 2.0 per share for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Group continued to identify new ways to accelerate the growth
of its distribution business during the year. Through redoubling our
marketing efforts and expanding the line-up of our TrekStor e-Book reader
products, the business continued to record satisfactory sales growth and
remained a key contributor to our distribution segment. As for gaming
and entertainment products, we successfully broadened the distribution
channels of our GAEMS products series to Microsoft’s retail networks at
end of 2012 and sales of this product are expected to achieve a better
performance in 2013.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Meanwhile, the Group has continued to evaluate possible acquisitions
that could create synergies with its existing businesses and help further
extend its international footprint. We expect that the acquisition of Fargo
Telecom, a distributor and provider of wireless products and solutions
in October 2012, would strengthen our R&D capability in high-end
niche telecommunication products and would enable us to develop our
distribution networks in emerging markets such as China and India.

As for the EMS business, we intend to devote more effort to controlling
our production expenses, while strengthening our technical know-how
and production flexibility to meet the ever-stricter requirements of our
EMS customers. In this regard, ongoing technical training for our staff and
factory workers is critical to attain a higher level of production efficiency;
therefore we are making specific investments in this area. Meanwhile,
healthcare and beauty care electronics remain as our major new product
focus, and ongoing efforts on R&D continue to be directed on these
product segments.

In such a volatile operating environment, we remain cautiously optimistic
about the Group’s results performance in 2013. We shall closely
monitor the fast-changing consumer electronics market as well as the
manufacturing sector, and proactively formulate appropriate strategies
to address the market circumstances in a timely fashion. We are fully
confident we can meet the challenges ahead and also capture market
opportunities to promote long-term business growth.

At this time, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the entire
workforce for their diligence and commitment during the year. | would
further like to express my appreciation to all of our customers, suppliers
and business partners for their unwavering support, which is the
cornerstone of our growth and prosperity.

Cheng Han Ngok Steve
Chairman

21 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Over the past financial year, the Group continued to operate under
challenging conditions caused by the volatile global economy, which refers
to the economic uncertainty hovering over Europe and the United States,
and slowing economic growth in some Asian countries. With an uncertain
consumption sentiment, the new product launch plans of consumer
electronics brands tend to be less fixed hence EMS manufacturers need to
have the capability of arranging production within a shorter leadtime. The
increasing difficulty in securing stable orders as well as high production
costs in areas such as operating expenses and labour cost in both the
electronics manufacturing services segment and the distribution business
segment have both contributed to an erosion on the profitability of the
Group.

During the Year, the Group recorded operating losses in new business
areas including GAEMS that had not yet fully ramped up a distribution
network; the China sales network including setting up of a sales centre
in Shanghai and the development of an e-commerce platform both being
at the inception stage; and a new operation in India, which has not
commenced its manufacturing activities.

Despite the unfavourable operating environment, the Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$1,458.2 million, 11.4% higher than HK$1,309.4 million
in the previous year. Gross profit also slightly increased by 4.5%
to HK$281.3 million, compared to HK$269.3 million in 2011. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$23.3 million
(2011: HK$57.1 million).

The Group continued maintaining a healthy cash flow during the review
period, with cash and cash equivalents of HK$161.8 million (2011:
HK$147.8 million). The Board recommended a final dividend of HK cents
2.0 per share for the Year. Together with an interim dividend of HK cents
1.5 per share already paid, total dividend per share will amount to HK
cents 3.5.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER WD

EMS Business

The EMS business recorded a turnover of HK$787.9 million (2011:
HK$802.7 million), accounting for 54.0% of total turnover (2011: 61.3%).
During the year under review, the weakened consumer sentiment led the
Group’s customers to be highly cautious when placing orders, preferring
terms that curtailed production lead time, as well as smaller volumes and
replenishing inventory when necessary rather than making bulk purchases.

During the Year, the Group continued to offer a diversified product
portfolio, including telecommunications and non-telecommunications
products, with the highest quality standards to its internationally renowned
consumer electronics brand customers. It has also stepped up various
cost control measures in order to moderate the impact of rising material
and labour costs on the Group’s profitability. These measures included
increasing both automation and staff training to enhance production
efficiency, and in turn increase yield and lower its production cost per unit.
Meanwhile, it has further strengthened its partnership with its suppliers to
ensure a stable supply of raw materials for production.

Distribution Business

The total turnover of distribution businesses amounted to HK$670.3
million (2011: HK$506.7 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
32.3%. The increased sales of multimedia products, including TrekStor’s
e-Book reader and tablet PC, helped the Group’s distribution business to
grow steadily and take up a greater proportion of total turnover.

i Telecommunications Products

For the telecommunications business, which is principally engaged
in the distribution of small and medium business phone systems
(“SMB phone systems”) in Americas, segment revenue reached
HK$158.4 million in 2012 (2011: HK$153.8 million). Leveraging
its strong R&D capability, the Group broadened its product series
via the launch of a VolP SMB Phone System, thus consolidating
its leading position in the SMB phone system market in the US.
Meanwhile, it sought to further extend its distribution to potential
emerging markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Multimedia Products & Computer Accessories

During the reporting period, this area of the Group’s operation
recorded a 31.5% growth in turnover to HK$440.6 million (2011:
HK$335.1 million). As one of the top e-Book reader brands in
Germany, the Group has been able to maintain its competitiveness
among a few global players through effective marketing campaigns
and extensive distribution channels. To strengthen its line-up,
the new TrekStor e-Book reader model featuring state-of-the-art
technology was launched in 2012, and tablet PC products were
also unveiled in the second half of 2012. Both new products series
have recorded positive market response.

Gaming and Entertainment Products

During the Year, the Group continued to identify ways to accelerate
the growth of its gaming and entertainment products distribution
business. One of the major steps made was the signing of a
hardware licensing agreement with Microsoft in June 2012, which
helped expose the GAEMS product series to the extensive retail
and distribution channels of Microsoft’s products and related
accessories. The new series — GAEMS Sentry and Vanguard have
also been well received by the market since its launch in October
2012. In addition, the Group has broadened the distribution
channels of its products to the nationwide retail network of a US
video game and entertainment products retailer towards the end
of 2012, aiming to gradually improve the business performance
in 2013.

Others

While developing its existing business, the management is keen to
identify suitable acquisition opportunities which complement the
Group’s existing business and bolster expansion of its distribution
network. In September 2012, Telefield has entered into the
Subscription Agreement to acquire 53% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Fargo Telecom at a consideration of HK$15.0
million in cash. Fargo Telecom is a distributor and provider of
wireless products and solutions. The Group believes that the
agreement offers a unique opportunity to accelerate the growth of
its distribution business, while Fargo Telecom will bring additional
technical expertise and business opportunities in developing high-
end niche communications products, as well as to broaden the
Group’s product and solutions range.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWN DA

Geographical Analysis

Revenue by Country
HhEWA

& 5 A7
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Total revenue from major European countries (Germany, United Kingdom,
Switzerland, France and ltaly) rose 12.5% to HK$727.8 million (2011:
HK$646.8 million), accounting for 49.9% of the Group’s overall turnover.
In the United States, the revenue generated in that country amounted to
HK$231.1 million (2011: HK$227.9 million), representing 15.8% of total
turnover. In respect to the PRC (mainly in Hong Kong), revenue was
recorded at HK$285.8 million, up 18.0% year-on-year from HK$242.1
million in 2011. As for other countries, turnover rose by 10.9% to
HK$213.5 million.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded total revenue
of HK$1,458.2 million, an increase of 11.4% as compared to last year.
The Group managed to have a strong growth in revenue as a result of
the increase in EMS business and the continued contribution of the
distribution businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are two broad groups of business
units for segment accounting purpose, EMS and Distribution whereas the
latter can be subdivided into telecommunications products, multimedia
products and computer accessories, gaming and entertainment products

BEEFNWN DA
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EmERS - oSt EMMmE - B ATA mI{E
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and others.

The Group’s other operating segments include the distribution of wireless

communications products and others.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the revenue from EMS decreased
by 1.8% to HK$787.9 million (2011: HK$802.7 million), whereas the
revenue from Distribution segment increased by 32.3% to HK$670.3

million (2011: HK$506.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the growth in the sale
of non-telecommunication products in both EMS and distribution business
by 16.5% to HK$1,148.1 million (2011: HK$985.6 million), which in turn
contributes 78.7% (2011: 75.3%) of the overall revenue. It is the ongoing
policy of the Group to increase its emphasis to products with higher profit
margin non-telecommunication products.

Non-telecommunications products of the Group’s EMS segment mainly
include appliances and appliances control products and multimedia
products; whilst non-telecommunications products of the Group’s
distribution business segment mainly include multimedia products
and computer accessories under the brand “TrekStor” and the mobile
electronic gaming and entertainment systems under the brand “GAEMS”.

The growth in the revenue generated from non-telecommunications
products was mainly attributable to the following factors:

The “TrekStor” brand continued its strength in launching its e-book reader
products and it also enriched its product range with tablet computer
in its multimedia products category in Germany in 2012. The Revenue
generated from this segment of HK$440.6 million (2011: HK$335.1 million)
representing an increase of 31.5% and the revenue also accounted for
approximately 30.2% (2011: 25.6%) of the Group’s total revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2012; and

The revenue of HK$22.9 million recorded in the sale of the wireless
communications devices under “Fargo” upon the acquisition of the
subsidiary since October 2012 and the continuing revenue generated from
the mobile electronic gaming and entertainment systems under “GAEMS”
of HK$48.4 million (2011: HK$17.8 million).

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased by 13.2% from HK$1,040.1 million in 2011 to
HK$1,176.9 million in 2012. The increase was mainly due to an increase
in the volume of raw materials and components purchased by 15.0%
to HK$987.8 million (2011: HK$859.2 million), primarily attributable
to an increase in the sale of distribution businesses, and EMS non-
telecommunications products.
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Gross Profit

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWN DA
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Gross profit increased by 4.5% from HK$269.3 million to HK$281.3 E | A 269,300,000 & T v 1E M0 45% F=
million, while the gross profit margin slightly reduced to 19.3% (2011: 281,300,000/ 7T + i EF BB T FEE19.3%
20.6%). The gross profit was contributed by the EMS segment of ZE——F 1 206%) c RABTRERSE DS
53.1% (2011: 55.0%) and distribution business of 46.9% (2011: 45.0%). HEMABE53A1%(ZF——F : 55.0%) * KBAD

149,339

HEBHER BA6.9%(ZF——14F : 45.0%) °

Gross Profit by Segment (HK$’000)

5,604 15 ogg
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Annual Report %k 2012 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited BB ZRERAT 13



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

The increase in gross profit was primarily attributable to the following
reasons:

(i) The distribution segment of the Group remained strong growth
both in volume and gross profit in the year. The volume increased
by 32.3% and the gross profit of the segment increased by
8.9% to HK$132.0 million (2011: HK$121.3 million) with the
improving result of the distribution of multimedia products and
computer accessories under the brand “TrekStor” and the full
year contribution resulting from the distribution of the mobile
gaming entertainment systems under the brand “GAEMS” and the
additional contribution resulting from the distribution of wireless
communications products under the brand “Maestro” from the
newly acquired business in late 2012 respectively.

(if) The continuing expansion into the distribution business gives the
increasing level of gross profit for the year 2012. An increasing
portion of the gross profit is now derived from distribution
businesses 46.9% (2011: 45.0%) during the year.

Other income

Other income increased by 109.1% from HK$7.5 million in 2011 to
HK$15.7 million in 2012. One of the major items in the Year is the sum of
HK$7.8 million derived from the reversal of overly provided custom duty
provisions upon the confirmation of the categorisation of the product by
the Court in Germany.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses accounted for approximately 6.1% in
2011 and 6.3% in 2012 of the Group’s revenue respectively. The Group
maintained similar level of selling and distribution expenses to the Group’s
revenue as last year.

Administration expenses

Administration expenses accounted for approximately 7.0% in 2011 and
8.6% in 2012 of the Group’s revenue respectively. The increase is mainly
caused by the impact of full year operation of the subsidiaries joined in
second half of 2011 topped up with the additional expenses recorded for
the newly acquired subsidiaries during the year 2012.

14 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited s E K122 R 2 3 Annual Report 3§ 2012

EMEMEZZBHRIATREMEK :

() TR AKSESHS BHHEEME
MBHEFRIER - tH BROHEEE

# R #E32.3% M EH A K ES9%

£ 132,000000 Bt ( = & — — F -
121,300,000 7T ) * B[ TrekStor | an

MR ZEEEMRERE TGN HEERR
Fﬁaﬁ(i [ GAEMS | &7 i #) 7 88 7% B 2 18K
x/\,yuﬁfﬁziiﬁﬁﬁxmﬁﬁﬁﬁf\ =

— — FFRFTUE R E 15 Maestro | 3 b

B9 i AR BALE M R RE SN B BAFR

et

(i) N\ZE—ZF  DHEEBFERRSE
FKFELEF-FR - AEEREDHE
EEOERMEE D B46.9%( —F——F ¢
45.0%) ' thERATIEN -

HAUg A

Hislg AR =T ——F /7,500,000 7T = F
109.1% & =& — = % #9 15,700,000 % 7T ° A
AFEFEEF—AEXEHEE AEBARETEM
SRR BERANBENEBEEREERMITED
7,800,000 T E AL YA ©

HER DX

HERDHEAXN T ——FR=_FT——FEX
EEBADBIKI 76.1% 56.3% ° BBEFLE
REBHE R0 R SE AR BB P45
RAREE -

ITHEH
THBRR - Z—F N T — —FhAREEK
ADBNEIT7T.0%K86%  tATERZHNAER

FARZE——FTHFUBNMNBRRZFE

%o ER =T —FHEHKENNE AR
HIRHBASN S HFTER -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased by 61.1% from HK$28.7 million in
2011 to HK$46.3 million in 2012. The increase was mainly attributable
to the additional research and development cost of HK$13.6 million
expended by the Group to enhance its design and manufacturing
ability and the realised loss and unrealised fair value loss on derivative
instruments of HK$8.3 million in relation to Group’'s coverage of its
currency exposure in Euro dollars.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interest payments for
the Group’s bank loans, import/export loans, factoring charges and
implicit interest on financial liabilities. The Group’s finance costs were
approximately HK$8.4 million in 2011 and HK$10.9 million in 2012,
represented approximately 0.6% and 0.7% of its revenue, respectively.

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expense represents amounts of income tax paid
by the Group, at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC, Japan, the US, India and
Germany. The Group had no tax payable in other jurisdictions during the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012.

The Group’s effective income tax rates for the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2012 were approximately 11.8% and 15.3%, respectively.
The increase in the Group’s effective tax rate during the year 2012 was
primarily attributable to the increase in tax provision of the Group’s
overseas subsidiary in Germany.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately 59.1% from approximately HK$57.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011 to approximately HK$23.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The Group’s net profit margin attributable to
owners of the Company decreased from approximately 4.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2011 to approximately 1.6% for the year ended 31
December 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER WD

The decrease was mainly attributable to the significant increases in costs
of goods sold in the EMS segment due to increase in labour costs caused
by labour shortage and compliance with minimum wage requirement in
the People’s Republic of China and the associated production costs as
a result of the appreciation of Renminbi, and the increase in selling and
distribution expenses caused by the increase in volume of business under
distribution segment.

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounts to the
loss of HK$3.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: profit
of HK$3.5 million). The increase in the net profit contributed primarily by
TrekStor, the indirect owned subsidiary of the Company in Germany,
was offset by losses incurred by the other indirectly owned overseas
subsidiaries.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cash flows and the proceeds from the Company’s
initial public offering in January 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$161.8 million, representing an increase of HK$14.0 million from
2011. Respective sum of 39.0%, 42.2% and 13.1% of the cash and cash
equivalents was denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars and
others 5.7% was denominated in various currencies.

The Group’s current ratio reflects a strong position at 1.56 times (2011:
1.62 times).

As at 31 December 2012, the total interest-bearing bank borrowings
were HK$79.9 million (2011: HK$51.9 million), comprised primarily of
bank loans and overdrafts and import/export loans. These borrowings
are all repayable within one year. The majority of these borrowings were
denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars or Euro and the interest
rates applied were primarily subject to floating rate terms.

The Group was in a net cash position (cash and cash equivalents less total
bank borrowings) of HK$81.9 million such that no gearing ratio applies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash flow

In 2012, HK$35.5 million was generated from the operating activities
respectively, whilst HK$9.2 million were received on financing activities
and HK$31.3 million were spent on investing activities respectively. Net
cash inflow from financing activities was mainly related to the net bank
borrowings raised of HK$27.7 million offset by the dividend paid of
HK$18.5 million.

Exchange risk exposure

The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through the use of
derivative financial instruments. The Group primarily enters into foreign
currency forward contracts and put option (the put option enables
the Group to sell Euro at a designated strike price) to reduce the
effects of fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates, in particular, the
exchange rate between Euro and HK dollars. The Group categorises
these instruments as being entered into for purposes other than trading.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had currency option and forwards
contacts of fair value of approximately HK$Nil million and negative of
HK$8.1 million respectively. The contract amounts of the option and
forward contracts are Euro 2.0 million and Euro 12.5 million respectively.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure for 2012 amounted to HK$16.9 million and capital
commitments as at 31 December 2012 amounted to HK$11.6 million.
Both the capital expenditure and capital commitments were mainly related
to the acquisition of plant and machinery to cope with the increase in
business volume.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, none of the Group’s assets was
pledged.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has a patent infringement claim
lodged by E-Ink Corp. against one of its subsidiaries, seeking for an
injunction against the sale of ebook reader and for a compensation of
HK$10.3 million. The management considers E-Ink Corp.’s allegations are
without merits and thus no provision for loss had been provided.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

During 2011, a copyright collecting agency has unilaterally announced
new copyright fees for certain products of the Group. Management
estimated that the alleged claim from the copyright collecting agency
at the end of reporting period is approximately HK$40.1 million (2011:
HK$32.3 million). The chargeable rate is still pending for the agreement
between the agency and the industry representatives, and should the
negotiation fails, the chargeable rate will be determined by the Court in
Germany. Base on the latest available information, the directors are of
the opinion that it is not probable that the Group will be required to settle
the relevant alleged claim in full value and provision has been duly made
by the Group to cover the expected maximum liabilities pursuant to the
best knowledge of the management.

Acquisitions, disposals and significant investment

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the 53%
equity interest of Fargo Telecom Holdings Limited (“Fargo Telecom”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, at a subscription price
of HK$15.0 million pursuant to a share subscription agreement. The Group
also undertakes to further acquire, by stages but not later than 30 April
2015, up to 42.3% the equity interests of Fargo Telecom currently held
by the non-controlling parties of Fargo Telecom. The consideration of the
shares will not be exceeding HK$20 million and it is determined by the 5
times of the net profits after tax of Fargo Telecom for the years as agreed.

Apart from the aforesaid transaction, there was no material acquisition,
disposal or investment by the Group.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 2,800 employees in various
operating units located Hong Kong, USA, Germany and PRC. In order
to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure smooth operation
and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it offers competitive
remuneration packages, with reference to market conditions and individual
qualifications and experience.

Nevertheless, there is no share option scheme put in place as at 31
December 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Though the global economy remains challenging and rising production
and labour costs weigh on most manufacturers, the Group is cautiously
optimistic and looks forward to improvement of its results performance in
the year ahead. It will continue to execute the proven growth strategies
of its EMS and distribution business, aiming to achieve greater synergies
of the business to enhance long-term growth and profitability. While the
EMS business remains the major source of revenue, it is expected that the
distribution business will account for a higher proportion moving forward.

Leveraging its industry-leading technology know-how as well as insightful
market intelligence, the management will continue to emphasize the
development of niche market products. Encouraged by the increasing
awareness of the TrekStor brand, e-Book reader and tablet PCs will
contribute more to segment sales, capturing a greater share of the rapidly
growing e-Book reader and tablet PC markets in Europe, particularly
Germany but also elsewhere. The acquisition of Fargo Telecom, should
further strengthen its R&D capabilities of the telecommunications segment,
which has been one of its major income contributors. The Group is also
delighted to see a recovery in its gaming accessories area since late 2012,
supported by an expanded sales network.

Through strategic acquisitions in the past few years, the Group has
already established an extensive business network in the US, Germany,
other European and Asian countries. While further exploring potential
markets within its existing network coverage, the Group aims to tap
emerging markets such as China, Russia and Brazil. Its operations unit
in India is planning to kick-start the EMS business in 2013.

Striving to maintain its position in the electronic products sector, the
Group is partnering with The Hong Kong Polytechnic University on a
project entitled “R&D Platform for New Generation Beam for Medical
Ultrasound Scanner,” under which the Group is entitled to enjoy priority
use of the research results in the development of ultrasound technology
used in beauty care equipment and ultimately in medical equipment. The
Group is constantly striving to reinforce its R&D capability, so as to cope
with more stringent product requirements of its EMS customers. In view of
the prevailing challenging environment, it plans to allocate more resources
on the ongoing training of staff as well as factory workers, in order to
achieve a higher level of production efficiency and capability.

Looking ahead, 2013 is expected to continue presenting a fair mix of
challenges and opportunities. Nevertheless, by bolstering Telefield's
competitiveness on a variety of fronts, as well as having well-defined
business strategies in place, the management is optimistic in achieving
solid and balanced growth in the long run.
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Corporate Governance Report

.I/J'_\\ IHHA-’F&I:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practice
(effective until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code
(effective from 1 April 2012) (the “Revised Code”) (together the “Code”)
under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2012, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the title of
“chief executive” and this is deviated from the code provision A.2.1 of
the Code. Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, who acts as the chairman and
the executive Director of the Company, is also responsible for overseeing
the general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Group. The
roles of the respective executive Directors and senior management who
are in charge of different functions complement the role of the chairman
and chief executive. The Board believes that this structure is conducive
to strong consistent leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply
with the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the different
roles of chairman and chief executive officer.
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Corporate Governance Report

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions
by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2012 and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The three independent non-
executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen

Ms. Fok Pui Yin

Mr. Lee Kai Bon

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

Dr. Xue Quan

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management
are disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 35 in this annual report. The
composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experiences
appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the Group and to
exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and (2)
of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All independent non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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TRERME

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group’s business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems
to manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative
functions of the Group are delegated to the management.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to
attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings are
sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to
the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views at
meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment on the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent as at the date of this annual report.
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SEPER

Number of meetings attended/held

HESZRHE BHERYE
Annual General Board
Meeting Meeting
Name of member REHA BRBFERE EEEER
Executive Directors: HITERE -
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman) B A (F/E) 1/1 6/6
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry BRI E 1/1 6/6
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RBIREE 1/1 6/6
Ms. Fok Pui Yin EME 2+ 1/1 6/6
Mr. Lee Kai Bon UL 1/1 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHTESE -
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter BERBE L E 1/1 6/6
Dr. Xue Quan EERIEL 1/1 6/6
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent AmAET 1/1 6/6

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Pursuant to the amendments to the Corporate Governance Code of
the Listing Rules which took effect on 1st April, 2012, under code
provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in Continuous Professional
Development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant.

The Company is obliged to make arrangements for training to its
directors at the Company’s expenses. The Company had organised
training on the listing rules for the directors in 2012. The training were
conducted by the Company’s legal advisers D.S. Cheung & Co. with
presentation and briefing materials. In addition, individual directors also
participated in other courses relating to the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials. The Company Secretary reports from time to
time the latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors with
written materials.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 July 2010 (save for Mr. Cheng Han
Ngok Steve, whose service contract commenced from 18 May 2010) until
termination in accordance with the respective contract. Subject to the
terms of the service contract, each service contract may be terminated by
either party thereto giving to the other party not less than three months’
prior written notice.
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.I/J'_\\ IHHA-’F&I:

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the date of signing of their respective letter of appointment and
may be terminated by either party by giving at least three months’ prior
written notice.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director shall
retire from office at least once every three years and shall include those
who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, with
written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient implementation
of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the
above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December
2010. The Audit Committee had three members comprising our three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong
Vincent (Chairman), Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter and Dr. Xue Quan.
The composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system of
the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the Board on 30
March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the Revised Code, a copy of
which is posted to the Company’s website and HKEx website.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2012 included the
following:

° to review the financial results and reports;

° to review the reports from external auditors, management letters
and management response;

o to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control system;

° to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

° to review corporate governance matters; and

° to review the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during 2012 and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHES HESEEE BHYEEE
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman) BmAtELT (/&) 6/6
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter SR B4 6/6
Dr. Xue Quan B RIEL 5/6

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2012
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010
and currently comprises one executive Director, namely, Mr. Cheng Han
Ngok Steve, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter (Chairman), Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent
and Dr. Xue Quan. Pursuant to a resolution of the Board passed on 30
March 2012, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to
the Revised Code. The terms of reference are currently available on the
Company’s website and HKEx websites.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review
and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management and to
make recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director
shall participate in any discussion about his or her own remuneration.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market
conditions.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year
ended 31 December 2012 to review the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below.
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHS HEEREE BHEERHE
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter (Chairman) B RBELE (£/F) 11
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve TR A 11
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent oA ELT 1/1
Dr. Xue Quan EERIEL 1/1
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors. Its
specific written terms of reference, which has been revised by the Board
on 30 March 2012 pursuant to the Revised Code, are currently available
on the Company’s website and HKEx websites.

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, comprising one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan
Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue Quan (Chairman). Pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 30 March 2012, Dr. Xue Quan has
been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held and the individual
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attendance of each member is set out below. TR o
Number of meetings
attended/held
Name of member BREEE HESRYE CHERHE
Dr. Xue Quan (Chairman) R (TE) 1/1
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter B E R B E 1/1
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve B & A& 1/1
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent MmAELT 1/1
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL EEHMBBRRNWESE

STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditors of the Company about their responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the report of the independent
auditor’s report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

EEPARHEAREREAEN R AT RRAS
B E=BAOR P BRI N B R IR A RE MR

A7
o ©

RRABZBENE B RN B AR - FNAF
BB REN - WEBREATAREMHRIT
MERR BB E RN ERE AR

Annual Report 3§ 2012 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F&ERERAERAT 27



Corporate Governance Report

.I/J'_\\ IHHA-’F&I:

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler as its external auditors
for the Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the external auditors is included in note 12 to the financial
statements in the Annual Report. For the Year, the total fee paid in respect
of the non-audit services is approximately HK$0.2 million.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed to
meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. Qualified management of the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has appointed an
external independent internal control advisor to conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions, etc. Based on the assessment made by
the internal control advisor, the Board considers that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the Audit Committee has found
no material deficiencies on the internal control systems.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening of extraordinary general
requisition by shareholders
The general meetings of our Company provide an opportunity for

meeting on

communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of our Company shall be held in each year. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to as an
extraordinary general meeting.
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According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of our Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The Company
has established its own corporate website www.telefieldgroup.com.hk
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its shareholders and
the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications and
relationships with its shareholders and investors.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly to
the Company through the following e-mail: enquiry@telefieldgroup.com.hk.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

There were no material changes to the Articles of Association of
our Company for the year ended 31 December 2012. A copy of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association is posted on the Company’s
website and HKEx websites.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, aged 59, an executive Director and
chairman of the Company since its incorporation on 18 May 2010, is
the founder of the Group and a director of most of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. He has over 35 years of
experience in consumer electronic products industry. Under Mr. Cheng’s
leadership, the Group has succeeded to diversify from the production
of telecommunications products to a wider EMS industry segment and
entered into the branded products distribution sector.

Mr. Cheng is a FEIARBUAHEEREMNTHZEEHKEE (standing
committee member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the Baiyun District of Guangzhou). Mr. Cheng obtained
a Bachelor of Mathematics from the University of Waterloo in Canada in
October 1977 and a Higher Diploma in Electronic Engineering from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in November 1973. He and Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry are brothers-in-law.

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry, aged 53, an executive Director since 1 July
2010, is the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the
Company. He is currently a director of most of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a supervisor of Guangzhou Telefield
Limited (the “Guangzhou Telefield”), Guangzhou Telefield Medical Devices
Limited (the “Guangzhou Telefield Medical”) and Telefield Vision (Shanghai)
Limited (the “Telefield Vision (SH)”). Mr. Poon is responsible for developing
and implementing the Group’s strategic objectives and business plans. Mr.
Poon has over 25 years of experience in audit, accounting and finance.
He is currently a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Poon obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Manchester in the United
Kingdom in December 2002 and a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic

30 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited # S B2 AR A Annual Report 3§ 2012

=

HITES

BEHMEE - 5958 ° BARBER _FT—TFHA
TN\ BEEMAKZEAZK - BN ERRARMITEEFR
IR RAKEEIRA - TEAKREALOTE
LENBARMNES - AL ABARAKREEBH
EREIKEE - FNEFHEMTEREBIBI5
FHEER - EERENEET - AEBEXBKY
HEMERTIED RERERNE FEERKT
XIRED - WEEMMEERD HE

B ERFAARBABERRENTEEREY
BER « BRER—ALEF T AMENEXA
HEASHESLEG  —AL=F+—AME
ERETRR ARESEIAD) EFIRER
U8 - BERRISRERIA -

BRFALE 63 BT —TFLA—HEEH
FRTESR  BEARRMBEERDAWE - K
AR RAREAD ZEHNBRRNESE © &I
EEMPZBEFARAR(EMPZD - EIMNF
BREESMARAR(EMNPERE]) REFE
SrE(L8)ERAR(TEM(LE) DHNES -
ERERBHERBERAEE N B IRMES
A8l BEAERER - SR R REBB25F
W& - BRAREAEHHABMAREE - I
RREFFLARGHMASHEBEE - FEER
“EREF+ - ARRREAITERENTRE
ERELTEM AN\ =F T - ARRESETL
B (RREEETAB)NGTEERE - B
ZTNFHARZE-_Z——F - AILHHE - &%
ERBBMERFAAER AT (BT ERE



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNSAREEEREHE

University) in November 1983. Since October 2009 and up to February
2012, Mr. Poon has been an independent non-executive Director of
Sunlink International Holdings Limited (“Sunlink”) (stock code: 2336),
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). His appointment was subsequent
to a winding-up petition against Sunlink which was filed on 1 December
2008 and the petition was subsequently discharged in February 2012.
Mr. Poon has resigned as independent non-executive Director of Sunlink
International Holdings Limited with effect from 24 February 2012. Mr.
Poon and Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve are brothers-in-law.

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen, aged 52, an executive Director since 1 July 2010,
is currently the general manager of manufacturing division of Telefield
Limited (the “Telefield (HK)”). Mr. KY Ng is also a director of Guangzhou
Telefield, Huizhou Telefield Limited (the “Huizhou Telefield”), Telefield
Vision (SH), Guangzhou Telefield Medical, Telefield Holdings Limited
(formerly known as “Orient Power Telecommunication Limited” and “Big
Apple Enterprises Limited” (the “Telefield (BVI)”)) and Telefield (HK). Mr.
KY Ng has over 25 years of experience in the electronics industry.

Mr. KY Ng is a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council and is a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and The Institution
of Electrical Engineers, the United Kingdom. He obtained a Master of
Science in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong in December
1989 and Associateship and Higher Diploma in Production and Industrial
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1983 and November 1982,
respectively.

Ms. Fok Pui Yin, aged 57, an executive Director since 1 July 2010, is
the general manager of administration division of Telefield (HK). Ms. Fok is
also a director of Aiko Beauty (Shenzhen) Limited (the “Aiko (S2)”), Modern
Channel Limited (the “Modern Channel”), Telefield Medical, Telefield (BVI)
and Telefield (HK) and certain subsidiaries. She is responsible for general
administration, procurement and information technology management of
the Group.
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Ms. Fok obtained a Bachelor of Business (Business Administration)
from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in September 2004,
a Professional Diploma in Enterprise Directorship awarded jointly by the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors and Hong Kong Productivity Council
in August 2009, and a Diploma in Management Studies awarded jointly
by Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and Hong Kong Management Association in September 1992,

Mr. Lee Kai Bon, aged 53, an executive Director since 1 July 2010, is
a general manager of business division of Telefield (HK) and the Group’s
research and development centre. Mr. Lee is also a director of Telefield
(BVI), Telefield (HK), Guangzhou Telefield, Huizhou Telefield, Aiko (HK),
Aiko (SZ) and Telefield Vision (SH) and certain subsidiaries. Mr. Lee has
over 25 years of experience in consumer electronic products industry.
From November 1989 to November 1992, he served as an associate
consultant of Hong Kong Productivity Council. Mr. Lee graduated with
a Bachelor of Science (Hons) from the University of Warwick, the United
Kingdom in July 1982.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter, aged 52, an independent non-
executive Director since 1 July 2010. Mr. Au-Yang has been appointed
the chief financial officer of Sateri Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) on 1st January 2013. He is also a
director of AsiaSoft Company Limited which is the holding company of a
group with businesses in different sectors of the software industry. Prior to
joining AsiaSoft Company Limited, Mr. Au-Yang spent more than 20 years
in the financial services sector in the Asia-Pacific region. Mr. Au-Yang
joined the HSBC group in 1985 and became a co-head of Investment
Banking, the Asia-Pacific region of the HSBC group in 2001. Between
1985 and 2003 when he was with the HSBC group, he worked on various
equity capital fund-raising exercises and mergers and acquisitions projects
in the Asia-Pacific region. Between 2003 and 2006, Mr. Au-Yang was
an executive director and the chief operating officer of the SFC. In late
2004, Mr. Au-Yang doubled up as the executive director in charge of the
corporate finance division of the SFC. Mr. Au-Yang is also an independent
non-executive Director and the Chairman of GreaterChina Professional
Services Limited (a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange). Mr. Au-Yang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in Business Studies from the University of Bradford in England in July
1982, and a Master of Science degree in Accounting and Finance from
the London School of Economics and Political Science in August 1983.

32 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited # S B2 AR A Annual Report 3 2012

EXIR _ZZEMOFNAARGERAERETS
2 (ITEHER)EM  RZTSAF ARG
BREFEERBBLEENRERBEREND
REZERR R AN_FAARGELE
TERCAREEETARSE) RAESEEEXHS
e RBEMEREUR -

ZMPRE 535 BT TFLA—BHE
HERITES - AP EBBEBDRAEEPR
FRLAEETE - iR Telefield BVI) » REES - &
MNPE - BMNFE  BRE(EE) BEMOR
INREM( LB URETHBATINES - F
EEREFHERITEREBB2SFHLR - @
—NAWNNF+—AE—AA=ZF+—8 k4
BIEAEBLEENRERNBIZER - THEER
—NNZFLABERREHEHRAD  RSES
T (5B ) BN -

BYEHITES

BERELAE 52 B-E—ZF+H—H
REEBIIRTES - BGEEER T —=
F-A—HEZARBMIMERLETAAES
AR B R 2~ A8 B 75 48 85 o 18 71 = AsiaSoft
Company Limited W &% © Z ARl BB EEMH
EXZERHEBOLESREERAR - A
AsiaSoft Company Limited B » Bt 5t 4 7 88 A
&SRR EREA0F LR - BEEEER
—NWN\RAEMANEEEE  —TT—FAEL
EETAREBRERITHEEE - A—NLN\AFE
TEE-FARELEEN  HELMATAES
BERAEEES - FRORWEEE -H-_TT=
FETTAF  BGEELARESNNTE
EMEELEY - —TTNFE - BGLEEAHR
TEE REZTHEGNLERMEL - RIFEETR
ETEEEERBERAE (—MRBZATAI%
RETHRBDNBUFNTESRET - BIS
EER—NNZFLABSEBRANEREAS
REMTEELEM0 - TR—HAN=ZFN\ARE
BB E S &5t RV ISR 2467



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNSAREEEREHE

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, aged 62, an independent non-executive
Director since 1 July 2010. Dr. Kwan has been appointed as Executive
Director of Executive Education Programs and Adjunct Professor in
the Faculty of Business and Economics in The University of Hong
Kong ("HKU") with effect from May and June 2012 respectively. He
has also been appointed as standing committee member of the HKU
Convocation with effect from July 2012. He was an executive member
of the Hong Kong Economic Society with effect from May 2010. Dr.
Kwan worked with Yew Chung Education Foundation ("YCEF") in Hong
Kong since March 2001 and he was the chief financial officer and new
premises project manager when he retired from "YCEF" in February
2013. Dr. Kwan was a professor of Business and Management Division
of United International College (jointly founded by Beijing Normal
University and Hong Kong Baptist University) from March 2006 to
March 2012. Dr. Kwan was a non-executive director of Finet Group
Limited (stock code: 8317), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the HK Stock Exchange from 2005 to 2010. He has been
an independent non-executive director of Jiangling Motors Company
Limited, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since June
2008. Dr. Kwan is a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources
Management, a fellow of the Institute of Management Consultants,
and a senior member of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. Dr.
Kwan obtained a Doctoral Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Western Sydney in Australia in May 2004, a Master's
Degree in Commerce from the University of Hitotsubashi in Japan in
March 1981, and a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1973.

Dr. Xue Quan, aged 47, an independent non-executive Director since
15 July 2010. Dr. Xue obtained a Doctor of Philosophy from & F &%
KE (The University of Electronic Science and Technology of China) in
September 1993 and a Bachelor of Engineering from X #3E &l T2 2207
(Chengdu Institute of Radio Engineering) in July 1988. Dr. Xue is currently
a professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering and the Associate
Vice President of the City University of Hong Kong. He has over 12 years
experience in consumer electronic products industry. From January 2002
to February 2009, he was the managing director of Shenzhen Goldradio
Communication Ltd, a company engaged in microwave and antenna
components for satellite communications. From October 1998 to May
1999, Dr. Xue was a senior engineer of Dynax Electronics (HK) Limited,
a company engaged in DVD components and wireless communications.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dwight T. Sakuma, aged 62, is the president of TFNA (US). He
joined the Group in January 2009 as the president of TFNA (US). Mr.
Sakuma is currently in charge of the North American business, which
includes managing sales, marketing, operations, product management
and business development of TFNA (US). Mr. Sakuma has held senior
management positions in sales, product management and business
development in the consumer electronics industry. Mr. Sakuma obtained
a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Washington in the US.

Mr. Shimon Szmigiel, aged 62, is the director and chief executive officer
of TrekStor (Germany). He joined the Group in October 2009 as the
director and chief executive officer of TrekStor (Germany). Mr. Szmigiel
has 30 years of experience in sales, product management and business
development in electronics industry. Mr. Szmigiel was educated in Israel
at a “Kibbutz” (a special closed-group-community) and graduated from a
high school in Mannheim, Germany.

Mr. Dean Mercier, aged 51, CEO and board member of GAEMS since
May 2010, is the founder of GAEMS. Mr. Mercier is responsible for the
overall strategic direction and product vision of GAEMS. Mr. Mercier
obtained his MSCE (Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer) in 1998 at
Seattle Pacific University. Prior to founding GAEMS, Mr. Mercier worked
as IT business analyst and customer account manager then founded
his consulting company Lighthouse PM in 2002 and served as an
SME (Subject Matter Expert), project manager and business analyst
for major enterprise level state government, private, and healthcare
organizations throughout the United States. His expertise was in directing
and implementing human capital and labor management analytical
systems integrated into industry leading ERP and HR/Finance platforms.

He has over 12 years of human capital and labor management analytics
experience as an independent consultant. Prior to his IT career, Mr.
Mercier spent 19 years in the biotech industry and in the letter part of his
career in biotechnology, Mr. Mercier work in an R&D project management
and technician capacity testing and validating software/hardware solutions
for high volume automated testing platforms integrating into secure
Microsoft windows based operating system environments.
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Mr. Xavier Dupont, aged 35, is the Managing Director of Fargo Telecom
Holdings Limited. He has been working 12 years in Asia including China,
Vietnam, India and Hong Kong; in different business position and different
field such as heavy industry and M2M Communication. He joined Fargo
Telecom Asia Limited in September 2004 in New Delhi INDIA to lead the
sales in the Northern Region and was transferred in November 2005 to the
Hong Kong headquarter to support the overall m2m activities. Mr Dupont
studied in Grenoble Business School France as well as in the University of
Victoria Canada and holds a Master Degree in Management from 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry has been the company secretary of the Company
since 20 August 2010. His biographical details are set out in the sub-
section headed “Directors” in this section.
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Report of the Directors

ESTHME

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 50 to 54.

The Board has declared an interim dividend for the Year of HK cents
1.5 per ordinary share of the Company (2011: HK cents 2.0 per ordinary
share of the Company), totaling HK$6,176,000 which was paid on 28
September 2012.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK cents 2.0
per ordinary share in respect of the Year to shareholders on the register
of members of the Company on 10 June 2013. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, it is
expected that the final dividend will be paid on or around 26 June 2013.
The recommendation of the final dividend has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position.
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Report of the Directors

REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 18 May 2010. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 31
December 2010. On 27 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”) the shares of
the Company have been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

As part of the preparation for listing of the shares of the Company, the
Company implemented a capitalisation issue of 299,990,000 shares
and an issue of 100,000,000 new shares during its initial public offering
(the “IPO”) in 2011. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the
100,000,000 new shares were issued at HK$1.20 per share. In February
2011, the underwriters of the Company’s IPO partially exercised the
over-allotment option and the Company issued an additional 11,714,000
new shares at HK$1.20 per share. The gross proceeds of the IPO and
the partial exercise of the over-allotment option received by the Company
were approximately HK$120.0 million and HK$14.1 million, respectively,
and the net proceeds were approximately HK$105.5 million and HK$14.1
million, respectively. Details of the plan for the use of proceeds from the
IPO are set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 14 January 2011.

As at the date of this report, approximately HK$35.9 million were utilized
for acquisitions of new brand businesses, approximately HK$23.9 million
were utilized for the expansion of brand businesses, approximately
HK$17.6 million for the expansion of production facilities, approximately
HK$1.5 million were utilized for establishing overseas and PRC marketing
offices, approximately HK$3.6 million for research and development
offices, approximately HK$6.0 million for general working capital of the
Group and the remaining balance of the net proceeds was placed in
certain financial institutions and licensed banks in Hong Kong as short-
term deposits.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and the prospectus
of the Company dated 14 January 2011, is set out on page 147. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements in this
annual report.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES
There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

RESERVES

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the profits attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$23.3 million. The
Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share premium and
retained profits. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company in
paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Report of the Directors

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$8.9 million, of which HK$8.2 million has been proposed
as a final dividend for the Year, calculated in accordance with statutory
provisions applicable in the Cayman Islands.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 41 to the financial statements in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 50.7% of the Group’s sales for the Year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 13.8%. Total purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 26.8% of the
Group’s purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” below.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen

Ms. Fok Pui Yin

Mr. Lee Kai Bon

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

Dr. Xue Quan

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Article of Association,
Ms. Fok Pui Yin, Mr. Lee Kai Bon and Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a period of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr.Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue
Quan, and as at the date of this annual report, the Company still considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

Group are set out on pages 30 to 35 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from their respective date of appointment
and each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing from their respective date of appointment, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company pursuant to its articles of association, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

ESTHME

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 December 2012, interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

EERFETHRAEBRARD AR ELEE
FEzRG - HERORES 2EHZR
KRR

RZE——&F+_A=1+—0H ' EFRAQA*
ZITBAERARRISKEEMBEREZE(ERR
B 5 RAIE GBI EXVED) 2 ’in - MR G RE&E
HH - EAREES REEIRAEXVBET RS
DEBEMEARR R RBR T2 ER AR (B
RIEFEF KRB GN 2 BREAG X IESER A
BEZERRAR)  KELAREESRE
BIEB2MGEANREFE 2 B - iRE
ZAESF BB NS AN B R A T 2 e ROK B TR
5 @

Company/ Approximate
Name of percentage of
associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital
HE#ITRAE
=1 DNEEEEEERE EmME BREE BHAES T
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
ERETRER S A ZiN/NE]| corporation (Note 1)
Rt EEES (A1)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
PIN/NC]| corporation (Note 1)
Rt EEES (A1)
Mr. Lee Kai Bon The Company Beneficial Interest 3,834,000 0.93%
UL PA/NC] EnEn
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen The Company Beneficial Interest 2,640,000 0.64%
RigRzEE 7/ EamtEs
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry The Company Beneficial Interest 540,000 0.13%
RN LA ZAN/NS| EnfEs
Ms. Fok Pui Yin The Company Beneficial Interest 1,950,000 0.47%
EMBZ L 7/ EmiEs
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Report of the Directors

Note:

(1) Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve holds approximately 53.68% interest in Century Win
Industrial Limited and Century Win Industrial Limited respectively holds approximately
53.30% interest in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed or taken to be interested
in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by each of Dragon Fortune International
Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited.

Interest discloseable under the SFO and substantial
shareholders

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons/entities will have an
interest or a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO:

ESTHME

1 BEREER B L EEEERARHL63.68% s + 1
KERBEEXARRARDINELRRERATARTERE
EE2 AR ARFBHFELS3.30%Ea - MELER
EEERARAFARTEAEEASERATSEER
BENMEROT R ARE FHEAER -

REESRPERABEENERRTE
[
MR-ZE——F+-A=+—H UTAL B
P& SRR (P HE B BIRIEE H KA E 651
FEXVELSE2 37 BRI MR Bl T8 2 A oA
B IREE S R EGOIEI36EA R RIAT
ERERMATREmERIOAR ¢

B

fall:3

JIN

Interest in the Company VNG S
Company/ Approximate
Name of percentage of
associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital
HE#ITRAE
=18 DR HEBEEERE ERME BREE BHAES T
Dragon Fortune International The Company Beneficial Interest 243,942,000 59.25%
Limited /N BatEm
BEL BRI BRA A
Telefield Charitable Fund The Company Beneficial Interest 30,646,000 7.44%
REZREZESARAA ZAN/NE EmEn
Century Win Limited The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
LRBEEBRAF PiIN/NE| corporation (Note 1)
REEH RS (FiE1)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
PiN/NG]! corporation (Note 2)
Rt EE RS (Hi2)
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
g S Vi N/NE]! corporation (Note 3)
Rt EEER (M3)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
PiN/NE| corporation (Note 3)

REHAE S (H1F3)
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Report of the Directors

ESTHME

Company/ Approximate

Name of percentage of

associated Number of issued share

Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital

HERITRA

= NG =) by B EEME EREE BABED L

Ms. Ma Mei Han Elitte The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%

(“Mrs. Cheng”) FiN/N]| corporation (Note 4)

BEBL L ([BRK]) Rt EE kR (fit4)

The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%

Notes:

EN/NG|

Century Win Limited holds approximately 53.30% interest in Dragon Fortune
International Limited. Therefore, Century Win Limited is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by Dragon
Fortune International Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Century Win Limited holds approximately 52.62% interest in Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Century Win Limited is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve holds approximately 53.68% interest in Century
Win Limited and Century Win Limited respectively holds approximately
53.30% interest in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by each of Dragon
Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited.

Mrs. Cheng holds approximately 46.32% interest in Century Win Limited
and Century Win Limited respectively holds approximately 53.30% interest
in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund
Limited. Therefore, Mrs. Cheng is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
Shares which are beneficially owned by each of Dragon Fortune International
Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, and the substantial shareholders had any interests
in any business, which competed with or might compete with the business
of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
31 December 2010 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to, inter alia,
any employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
or service providers of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from the date on which the Scheme
was adopted, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the
Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share on the date of grant of the option provided always that
for the purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the Company
has been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the
issue price shall be used as the closing price for any trading day fall within
the period before the Listing Date.
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Report of the Directors

ESTHME

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance
with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Since the adoption of the Scheme, no share option has been granted by
the Company.

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012 neither China Merchants Securities (HK) Co.,
Limited (“CMS”) nor any of its directors, employees or associates had
any interests in the shares of the Company or any member of the Group,
or any right to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the
shares of the Company or any member of the Group.

Pursuant to the compliance advisor agreement entered into with the
Company and CMS in 2011, CMS received and will receive fees for acting
as the Company’s compliance advisor for the period commencing on the
Listing Date and ending on the date which the Company complies with
Rule 13.46 of the Listing Rules in respect of its financial result for the first
full financial year after the Listing Date.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock Exchange, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save for
the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual
report.
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Report of the Directors

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group has no significant event occurring after the end of the reporting
period and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been
audited by the Company’s auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler (who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting).

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Cheng Han Ngok Steve
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S

RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

—

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TELEFIELD INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Telefield
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 146, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2013

B ZBENRE

BRERITIRF NERA BGS M IBRRAE
CREEBEENZERZERE - FIEEZIEFEUR

RAZERED 2 #I - B3R AR RFFkERME
HRAMBRREFEEA#ERRL 2 Ak - £
ERERRE  ZBMEBREZARRREER
RF TR A B SRR AR 2 M EBEE
FHEE 2 BZER - BXIFRERRZABERE
xﬁl ERRER - %VIVFJT@%EWE%%?H?&FH

ZEFRRELBABMAIEHEABRE S
R LA&HE%?Sﬁ?ﬁ%#ﬁi\%z%éﬁfﬂ#ﬁ}?it°

LMIEE - RAIPERZEZER
WRBMINBEZE R R AR -

ERTT MBS

I

42

MR - ZFEFEPHRERCRET B ER

AIEERAFHRR BERRE SXER
“EF A=t -HZHBHRRE BE

BEEZALFREZEENRERE - YERR

BRRAGRAIZ HBEREZSRE

¢l

|I OfF 5
=y
af

s
£

PEE S (B8) BT
LB AT
wt

—T—=F=F=-+—H

Annual Report 3§ 2012 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F&ERERARAT 49



Consolidated Income Statement

e lER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-—T——F+—-F=+—HILtEE

2012 2011
—E——F =%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo5E FET T
Revenue A 7 1,458,192 1,309,390
Cost of goods sold $HE A (1,176,863) (1,040,059)
Gross profit EX 281,329 269,331
Other income HABKA 9 15,686 7,501
Selling and distribution expenses $HE M AR (91,515) (79,524)
Administrative expenses 1THE (125,378) (91,562)
Other operating expenses HugeE g R (46,273) (28,728)
Profit from operations Fed | 33,849 77,018
Finance costs BB A 10 (10,854) (8,391)
Profit before tax BRB AR A 22,995 68,627
Income tax expense FTiSfiA > 11 (3,507) (8,116)
Profit for the year FEEA 12 19,488 60,511
Attributable to: DUR % 75 e -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE ¥ =N 23,345 57,051
Non-controlling interests IR (3,857) 3,460
19,488 60,511
Earnings per share SREF 16
Basic (HK cents) EARGBL) 5.67 14.15
Diluted (HK cents) EE (BAL) N/A FE A N/A 7~ F
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
A e

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i FET FA&T
Profit for the year FERRN 19,488 60,511
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2 mEWE
Exchange differences on translating BEGINEGHE R =58
foreign operations 192 2,827
Gains on property revaluation EE LR Gy 17 8,200 5,980
Deferred tax arising from gains )5 B (i W e 2 AR IR AE R IR
on property revaluation 34 (1,353) (987)
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EWE - HRBE
for the year, net of tax 7,039 7,820
Total comprehensive income for the year FEHATEMKE 26,527 68,331
Attributable to: LT &5
Owners of the Company RARER A 30,416 64,778
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR i (3,889) 3,553
26,527 68,331
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

As at 31 December 2012 R-_Z——F+-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—g—-F —ZT—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo5E FH&T T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 17 83,716 75,803
Goodwill Sk 18 12,157 12,157
Intangible assets B EE 19 67,662 72,662
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE 21 - =
Deferred tax assets BERIBE = 34 12,174 5,841
175,709 166,463
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 22 270,249 209,565
Trade and bill receivables FEWE 5 8RR R FE IR 1R 23 199,652 182,220
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRUR ~ &S RHALEWEIR 24 51,610 61,647
Derivative instruments TAET A 25 - 1,532
Amount due from a shareholder JE U % BR SR IR 26 - 200
Current tax assets BERRH 1B & 2= 2,868 2,147
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 4 27 161,808 147,756
686,187 605,067
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables FERE ZHRM 28 128,297 144,477
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A & E A FRIE 29 191,719 148,205
Amount due to a non-controlling FEASTFT /8 R B FEFEAR AR SR SR IR
shareholder of a subsidiary 30 846
Bank borrowings RITEE 31 79,931 51,880
Financial liabilities at fair value through BATEFABENSHEE
profit or loss 33 9,782 9,023
Derivative instruments PTETA 25 8,137
Product warranty provisions EmiRARE 32 17,463 15,906
Current tax liabilities BNEAFHIE B & 4,678 3,834
440,853 373,325
Net current assets RBEEFE 245,334 231,742
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABER 421,043 398,205
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2012 R=_ZT——F+-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—®B-=F —F——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i FET FA&T
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEGFABENCREE
profit or loss 88 9,615 10,063
License fee payable FERT R FE ST R 19(b) 22,364 18,721
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIABE 34 25,383 21,446
57,262 50,230
NET ASSETS EEFE 363,781 347,975
Capital and reserves ERR #iE
Share capital %N 35 4,117 4,117
Reserves G 36 356,905 351,806
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NATHEE AELER 361,022 355,923
Non-controlling interests xRt 2,759 (7,948)
TOTAL EQUITY EmEE 363,781 347,975
Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013 BEeRN T =F=A_+—HitE
Cheng Han Ngok Steve Poon Ka Lee Barry
BRI BERF
Director Director
EE EE

Annual Report 3§ 2012 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited FRE2EEZERARAT 53



Statement of Financial Position

B EEAR R 3R

As at 31 December 2012 R-_Z——F+-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F =%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo5E FH&T T

Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB ARIMIEE 20 3,171 3,171

Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A Rl E 20 126,471 120,491
Bank and cash balances SRITNIR & 48k 27 4,079 12,985
Current tax assets BNERFHIB & 2= 128 =
130,678 133,476
Current liabilities HRBaE

Accruals and other payables TEIRE A & E AR FRIE 29 1,895 937
Amount due to a subsidiary FEASTFT /B A Rl 5RIE 20 210 =
2,105 937
Net current assets REBEEFE 128,573 132,539
NET ASSETS EERE 131,744 135,710

Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital FE &N 35 4,117 4117
Reserves (G 36(b) 127,627 131,593
TOTAL EQUITY EREAE 131,744 135,710

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013

Cheng Han Ngok Steve
B 17 58
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A flE L e 2

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILtFE

n‘/-ﬁ

Attributable to owners of the Company &2 F5%& At

Foreign
Share currency Property Non-

Share  premium Merger  translation revaluation Contributed ~ Statutory  Acquisition  Retained  Proposed controlling Total
capital  account  reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity

(note 35) (note 36(c)(i)  (note 36(c)(ii)) (nate 36(c)i)) (note 36(c)(iv)) (note 36(c)(v) (note 36 (c)(vi)
B ROGBER ANEE  EXRG UEERRE  MARR  teRE UBHE  REEY  ERRR B FEREE REEE

(Wit35) (HiEs6c)) (Fsaem) (Wsaein) (Fssely) (Fseel) (Fsee)y)
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER THR TER TERL TER TER TER TET TER TER TER TERL TERL
t 1 January 2011 RZB—%-A-R - - 31 13,221 4,391 18,298 963 - 139720 7411 187,165 (14894) 172271

Total comprehensive income. B2 EHE

for the year - - - 2,734 4,993 - - - 57,051 - 64,778 3,653 68,331
Issue of shares RAR1T (HetsomkLe)

(note 35(a) and (c)) 1,117 132,940 - - - - - - - - 134,057 - 134,057
Capitalisation issue (note 35(b)  AAMLEFT (H39)) 3,000 (3,000) - - - - - - - - - - -
Share issue expenses ROEARX - (14432 = = = = = = = - (14432 - (14432
Transfers s = = - - - - 318 - (318) - - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE—RHEAR

(note 37(b)) (Hiesn) = = = = = = = = = = = 3,212 3,212
Contributions from FERRRLE

non-controling Shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 181 181
2010 final cividend paid BXf=5-SEXERE = = = = = = = = = [7.411) (7.411) - [7.411)
2011 interim dlvidend paid B ——EdEkS

(note 18) (Hit15) = = = = = = = = (8234) = (8.234) - (8,234)
2011 proposed final dividend RN -E——EXKERE

(note 15) (Hit13) - - - - - - = - (2% 123 = = =
At 31 December 2011 RZF-—%+-A=1-A 4117 115,508 317 15,955 9,384 18,298 1,271 - 175867 12,352 355,923 (7,948) 347,975
At 1 January 2012 R-E-—£-f-A 417 115,508 317 15,955 9,384 18,298 1,21 - 175867 12,352 355928 (7,948) 347,975
Total comprehensive income ~ £EA2 ElE

for the year - - - 224 6,847 - - - 23,345 - 30,416 (3,889) 26,521
Transfers i - - - - - - 134 - (134) - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERELA (Ha3k37)

(note 33 and 37(a)) - - - - - - - (6,789) - - (6,789) 14,559 7,807
2011 final dividend paid BRf-E-—Ex8ks - - - - - - - - - (1235 (12359 - (12352
2012 interim dividend paid B -E-—EhERE

(note 15) (Wit1s) - - - - - - - - (6,176) - (6,176) - (6,176)
2012 proposed final dividend ~ #Ef =T —ERBKE

(note 15) (Wit1s) - - - - - - - - (8,234) 8,234 - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-Z§+ZR=1+-R 417 115,508 347 16,179 16,231 18,298 1,405 (6,789) 184,668 8234 361,022 2,759 363,781
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-—T——F+—-F=+—HILtEE

2012 2011
—B—=F ik S 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EBHREKE
Profit before tax R A BT Al 22,995 68,627
Adjustments for: HE
Allowance for receivables, net FEWRIE B i 5 58 1,147 1,416
Allowance on inventories, net FEREFE 10,297 8,556
Amortisation of intangible assets BT A RS 13,281 8,394
Depreciation e 17,999 14,819
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial liabilities BATEFABSHSRMEE Y
at fair value through profit or loss NEEEE (W) 355 (1,109)
Unrealised fair value loss/(gain) on TTETAAREHEAFEEE (W)
derivative instruments 8,765 (1,199)
Realised loss/(gain) on derivative instruments PTAETABEBER (e 2,721 (1,132)
Finance costs BhE AR 10,854 8,391
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREEREEE - 2,746
Discount on acquisition g2 (1,459) =
Bank interest income HRITALEWA (280) (235)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERE 125
Provision on product warranty EE iR RS 13,856 14,784
Operating profit before working capital changes BE BRI E R 100,656 124,058
Payment of contingent considerations (note 33) S'ZHW%KE( K15#33) (6,983) (5,864)
Increase in inventories FEEN (47,898) (65,258)
Increase in trade and bill receivables U 5 8RR R e UL = R 38 (9,414) (24,755)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERNFIE « e R HAEWEIR
deposits and other receivables A () 26,057 (21,244)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from shareholder B AR ER FRIER L,/ (38:40) 200 (200)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERE SRR, /150 (27,297) 27,791
Increase in accruals and other payables TEIRE A K E b FE S SRS N 27,974 36,242
Increase in amount due to a FERTHT B A R EE IR AR SR FRIEE N
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary 846
Decrease in product warranty provisions EmRARERD (12,423) (11,897)
Cash generated from operations LERIRE 51,718 58,873
Income tax paid B X FFTEH (9,041) (14,856)
Finance costs paid B IREK A (7,211) (5,691)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBSIRE TR 35,466 38,326
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

n‘/-ﬁ

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx Fi&T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHHRERE
Payment of business combinations EBA IR = (2,280)
Acquisition of subsidiaries/a subsidiary (note 37) UG BE P R A (H72237) (12,931) (26,277)
Interest received EUHE 280 235
Purchase of derivative instruments BETETA (628) (833)
Purchases of fixed assets BEETEE (16,862) (19,620)
Net (payments for)/proceeds from exercising TESTET AR,/ S RIEFE
derivative instruments (1,189) 3,339
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBFTAIR ST (31,330) (44,936)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RBEEEHRLHRE
Bank loans raised E5RTEXK 36,793 -
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITER (7,170) (11,004)
Net import/export loans (repaid)/raised (BfEE) BESELNERFRE (1,900) 7
Proceeds from issue of shares (note 35(a) and (c)) BTG TS FIE(HT7E35(a) & (c) - 134,057
Share issue expenses paid BTN BN = (14,432)
Contributions from non-controlling shareholders IR R A = 181
Dividends paid B fIRE (18,528) (15,645)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB BB TSI EIFRE 9,195 93,874
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBESESEYIEMEHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 13,331 87,264
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes R Eg)) =7 721 1,579
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FONRSRALSEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 147,756 58,913
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERESREASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 161,808 147,756
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERREZEYIHN
Bank and cash balances (note 27) RITRIBE LSRN E27) 161,808 147,756
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R TR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liabilities on
18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands and principal place of business is Units 609-610, 6/F, Bio
Informatics Centre, No.2 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong
Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 27 January 2011.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2012, Dragon Fortune International Limited (“Dragon Fortune”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the ultimate parent and
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve, is the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”)
to rationalise structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company became the holding company of the Group on 31
December 2010. Further details of the Group Reorganisation
are set out in the paragraph headed “Group reorganisation” in
Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company dated 14 January
2011 (the “Prospectus”).

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with the principles and procedures of merger
accounting as set out in Accounting Guideline 5 (“AG 5”) “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), as
if the Group Reorganisation had occurred from the date when the
combining entities first came under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders.

Details of accounting policy of merger accounting for business
combinations under common control are set out in note 4(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2012. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong
Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of leasehold land
and building, derivative instruments and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 5 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

4. EESTHER(E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-—T——F+—-F=+—HILtEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

62 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited

Merger accounting for business combination
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities as if they had
been combined from the date when they first came under
the control of the controlling shareholders.

The consolidated income statements and statements of
comprehensive income and consolidated statements of
cash flows include the results and cash flows of the
combining entities from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The consolidated statements of financial position have
been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of
the combining entities as if the Group structure as at
31 December 2012 had been in existence at the end of
each reporting period. The net assets of the combining
entities are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling shareholders’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling shareholders’
interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net

profit or loss of any combining entities in order to achieve
consistency of the Group’s accounting policies.

SEPZR AR A Annual Report €3 2012

4,

ERETTHE)

(b)

HEEHEKEH 22

2

LREMEBRRBSEHE

WK PR A HERES
AN

EHE R KA

BN
AR

o

ralmR hEmERERANGE

ﬁ@//mi%@?ﬁmﬁ’ifaj ==
BAMERIHAFESE BEA
BREBARAE) EAHERBNESE
MR RE - M wmEEEHE 6
B EE -

RAEVMBRAREREIAHER
MQF&Eﬁﬁ%% )i e
——Ft+t-A=tT—BNKERE
REBEHRE—EFE - AHE

BHEEFHENERBIR AR LA
EH%EEAH HT%Aﬁh
Lh%ﬁ%%&&mﬁﬁiw
THER ﬁLAEHxHx%?iﬁHEE’J
Rz AR e

AERAEENSETBR— ' i
ERBRTMEHERNEEFER
e F R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods
in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date
fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

4. EESTHER(E)

(c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in note 4(z) to the financial statements. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose
of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is

recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain

or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All
recognised in the foreign currency translation

resulting exchange differences are

reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Fixed assets

Land and buildings comprise mainly warehouse and offices.
Land and buildings are carried at fair values, based on
periodic valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset. All other fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

66 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F B2 R 2 = Annual Report F3§ 2012

4,

ERETTEHEE)

(d)

(e)

SN (1)

(i) fHRAERERBE(E)
RIZEERER BRES
INEREEFEREBEE
&2 R EERINEE K
EEER - BHEBINE
W % E0E N ERERER
EEENERAEEER
Z—H#m o

AR eINERMEEZ
BHERAFEHE B8
ERZBINEBZEER
BERE YR mEXR

o

nE

BEEE
THREFIEEERERNA
E o THEBFRAFEGRESI
B8 S (B R E B ETT 2 A {ERT
B)RERZITERBEERED
B - REMAZEMRATERER
EZREEAREE  MFRANE
JIRBEECEMEE - FIARME
EEERRARRAITERRER
1BIIR -

HRRA T NE ERREE R
RBUEEER) - HEEEEE
B AR RKEEN DB A ERA
REEMZIAB ZKABER SEAt E
B - FTARMAEE RRETINEE
A Z BRI AR B T R o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Fixed assets (Continued)

Revaluation increases of land and building are recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that the increases reverse
revaluation decreases of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss. All other revaluation increases
are credited to the property revaluation reserve as other
comprehensive income. Revaluation decreases that offset
previous revaluation increases of the same asset remaining
in the property revaluation reserve are charged against
property revaluation reserve as other comprehensive
income. All other decreases are recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
land and buildings, the attributable revaluation increases
remaining in the property revaluation reserve is transferred
directly to retained profits.

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost or revalued amounts less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4%
Over the lease term
or 20% — 25%

10% - 25%

Leasehold improvements

Plant, machinery,
moulds and tools
10% - 20%

18% — 33"/3%

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Intangible assets

Trademarks are measured initially at fair value upon business
combination and are assessed to have indefinite useful lives.
No amortisation is charged to profit or loss. Useful lives are
reviewed during each reporting period to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite
useful life assessment for the trademarks. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

License rights, customer relationship, patents and
technologies are measured initially at fair value upon
business combination or acquisition date and amortised
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives less
impairment losses. Useful lives of license rights, customer
relationship, patents and technologies are as follows:

License rights Over the lease period

Customer relationship 4.5 — 6 years
Patents 4 years
Technologies 3 years

The useful lives of customer relationship were estimated
by the Company’s management team upon business
combination, based on their expected successful rate
in retaining the acquirees’ customers, and the prevailing
general practice in the industry in estimating the expected
useful life of customer relationship acquired in business
combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leases

U]

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease

are accounted for as finance leases.

is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s product
development activity is recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified (such as
software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will generate
future economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Investments (Continued)

(i

(ii)

72  Telefield International (Holdings) Limited

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised in
other comprehensive income, until the investments
are disposed of or there is objective evidence that
the investments are impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are recognised in profit
or loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are not subsequently reversed
through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
reversed and recognised in profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between
the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out from note 4 (0) to 4 (s)
to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently
measured at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in
profit or loss as they arise.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-—T——F+—-F=+—HILtEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all eligible
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detail
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain management employees. Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions. The issuance of fully vested equity instruments,
or rights to equity instruments, is presumed to relate to past
service, requiring the full amount of the grant-date fair value
to be expensed immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-—T——F+—-F=+—HILtEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if
any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
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B RS R TR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EES:TBEEER(E)

(y) Related parties (Continued) (y) EFEAL(E)
(B)  (Continued) B (#&)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —HEBRE=F
and the other entity is an associate of the EfRRzeaEhE
third entity. mMas—EBRZE

“HEBZEBER
e

(2)

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring

vy EBSAEHxHAE
SEAHEECE
BB B AL

ZBERAR A ET & o

B

employers are also related to the Group. WMAEEAZER
BErE - IRIEER
ZEETEKREE
BRAE -
(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by V) EBIAANAHE?
a person identified in (A). A 1 i 3l A R 4
il o
(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant (vi) (AR PTERIA T2
influence over the entity or is a member of EREEATEN
the key management personnel of the entity IBZEE(HZE
(or of a parent of the entity). BoNRRAZEE
EEEKE -

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
derivative instruments, deferred tax assets, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statement when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Split of land and building elements

The Group determines that the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements.
Accordingly the entire lease of land and buildings is
classified as a finance lease and included under fixed
assets.

Legal title of certain patents

During the year 2011, the Group acquired a new subsidiary
as set out in note 37(b) to the financial statements. As at 31
December 2012, certain patents of this subsidiary were still
under registration process. Despite the fact that the Group
has not obtained the relevant legal titles, the directors
determine to recognise those patents as intangible assets,
on the grounds that they expect the registration of legal
titles in the future should have no major difficulties and the
Group is in substance controlling these patents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Fair value of certain assets and liabilities involve
valuation technique

For the Group’s acquisition of businesses, valuation
techniques were applied to determine the fair values of
the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.
Furthermore, the fair value of derivative instruments
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss as set out in note 25 and note 33 to the financial
statements respectively also involve valuation techniques.
When applying valuation techniques, various subjective
assumptions and generally accepted methodologies were
used to derive the fair values. Any changes in these
assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the fair
value of the underlying assets and liabilities.

Fixed assets and depreciation

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for
the Group’s fixed assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of fixed assets of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of fixed assets

The Group assesses annually whether fixed assets have any
indication of impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy. The recoverable amounts of fixed assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgement and estimates.

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation for the Group’s intangible assets. The useful
live of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite, based on the expected usage and technical
obsolescence from the changes in the market demands
or services output from the assets. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised over the expected useful
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for the
intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by the
management at least at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
aging and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and/or the past collection history of each debtor. Impairment
arises where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectable. The identification
of bad and doubtful debt requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

Product warranty provisions

Product warrant provisions of the Group is recognised
based on past experience of level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate. Movement
of the product warranty provisions during the year is set out
in note 32 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Should the final assessment of
tax authorities were different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

5. B#INEREERMEER)

(b)

(EREOEEEGSE =4S -2y
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BEE DiifhsthRESREEFE
FREE R EEFR S BE -

FEWE 5 BR 5% N2 H b & U SRR
=
AERERBEEYE 5K R E A
& WO SK TR B BT W (B 1A B R A
BRESEBANREEEENR
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FME M EUGRIREHIR(E - HF
HBEREB BRI EER
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

MBRRER

FEBEEEHEZERIBAR SN
Rl - EEER  RBESARRFIEE
% - ARENBEAREREN LTINS
RATITI5 607 A FURIE K B PR (R 4 K SR

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as

part of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are

denominated in United States dollar, Euro, Renminbi and

Hong Kong dollar.

The following tables detail the Group’s major exposure

at the end of reporting period to foreign currency risk

arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in

respective foreign currency. For presentation purposes, the

amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollar

translated using the spot rates at the end of reporting period.

MBRBEBETFIZE -

(a) SN

AEBEFAZINERR - REZE
MOEBRS - BERAGBNUE
7T BT - AR KRBTTIIE -

TRHAVAEEN HRERRECHE
RIZIARSNESENEERREM
AENTEINERR - BLEFIB K
MmE - AR RREEHARAE
KBE RIABTTIIR o

2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBTT
Denominated in United States dollar N ETHE
Trade and bill receivables FEUN B 5 8RR & FE U R R 108,490 119,042
Deposits and other receivables e R H AW IR 765 59
Bank and cash balances RIT IR S LR 58,845 28,239
Trade payables JERTE SRR (49,874) (43,390)
Accruals and other payables TEIR B F R B qth e K18 (11,895) (2,946)
Bank borrowings RITEE (4,983) (14,778)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies N () =B A RIFRIA 125,703 71,041
Total Bt 227,051 157,267
Denominated in Renminbi DARYESE
Trade and bill receivables FEUS B 5 BR 51 M FE U ZE 5 809 =
Deposits and other receivables e R H M e IR 437 248
Bank and cash balances RIT MBS R 51,455 50,950
Trade payables ERE SRR (7,567) (10,945)
Accruals and other payables TR B A R E At R IR (1,818) (1,769)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies s () B A RIFRIA (7,148) (15,709)
Total wast 36,168 22,775
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEE)
(@) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) MRS ()
2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBTT
Denominated in Euro NG
Trade and bill receivables FEUN B 5 8RR I FE W R R 115 =
Deposits and other receivables e R HAEW IR 15 =
Bank and cash balances R1T KRR S LR 367 5,804
Trade payables FERE SRR (544) (613)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies s (R B R RIFRIA 42,043 36,305
Total 4a=t 41,996 41,496
Denominated in Hong Kong dollar Ll T HIE
Bank and cash balances RITRIR© SRR 7 11
Accruals and other payables TEIR & A R B qth B~ 5RIE (103) -
Amounts due from/(to) group companies FEU (FEfH) B R R FRIE 67,335 113,720
Total &=t 67,239 113,731
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

MR EREE(E)
(a) FNEEER (&)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits that
would have been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting

REBFTE AR E B G RFTE
REBRIRERAFAEE ERR
BE XN mERRMEEE - K&
B /2 ) F) R AR B s 1| P] B HH 3R Y

period had changed at those dates, assuming all other risk BB L N R R
variables remained constant.
2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in foreign
Foreign currency/ exchange exchange
functional currency SN IhRE S B rates HK$’000 rates HK$’000
E=x fE 2
F. (&) FExT AR FHET
United States dollar/ EITH, 1% 2,482 1% 2,192
Hong Kong dollar BT (1)% (2,482) (1)% (2,192)
Renminbi/ ARBEH 5% (878) 5% (3,248)
Hong Kong dollar BT (5)% 878 (5)% 3,248
Euro/ BT 10% 3,774 10% 3,790
Hong Kong dollar BT (3,774) (10)% (3,790)

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011, the Group has used derivative financial
instruments to mitigate its risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations. The use of financial derivatives has
been closely monitored by directors of the Company. The
Group would choose financial institutions with high credit
rating as counter party when using derivative financial
instruments. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The
carrying amount of the bank and cash balances, derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables and due
from a shareholder included in the statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances and derivative
financial instruments is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 26% (2011: 37%)
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2012.

In order to minimise credit risk, management have delegated
a team to be responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

6. MBEREREHE)

(b)

SE Rk

AEEHIETHER - BRAAES
BERERENEPETHE < 5tA
MR KRRRITRIR S G - 17
EERTA  BRESRAKLEM
& WUSRIE A B2 B M — 2 AU ER SR IR
REESASESREES RN

=SiEERR -

FITRBSEBIARITESBRT A
WEEERER BESHTHE
B SR AL TSR TR
BISRAT o

REEAZETEESTRR - R
AREASE=KREFZAME=Z
——F+-A=+—HNEKES
BRI A26% (=T ——F : 37%) °

SREEERR  ERERKEER
HIEEERE  EEILEREME
ERFHEE o 1o ERESTE
Htm et E 5l e E S BR Ry AT Uk ]
&8 - WERFLT AU EI{E IR RER
RHBERR - 3t - ERERR
AEERNEERBARERD o
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HEkEEE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBESRK
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REERBOR & F HEERIRF L TE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HOTHESRE  WRRASE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements M B IIR S R E A BN R H M8
in the short and longer term. RENRBESHE ©
The contractual maturity analysis of the Group’s financial rEEepmaEGERAERNS)NE
liabilities (with interest thereon) is as follows: LRHEE DT ¢
Less than Between Between
1 year and 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over
on demand years years 5 years
15 LR
R NF F
ERE 1225 2Z55F HBIB5F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&TT FH&TT FHET FHET
At 31 December 2012 R-T——%F
t=A=+—H
Trade payables e E 5 8RR 128,297 - = -
Accruals and other payables FEIRERNEMENFZIE 162,657 - = =
Amount due to a FEASTBfT /BB R R FEFE AR
non-controlling shareholder A& R SR IE
of a subsidiary 846 - - -
Bank borrowings HRITEE 79,931 - - -
Financial liabilities at fair BAFEFTAERRN
value through profit or loss &gt & & 11,142 2,877 6,035 -
Derivative instruments PTET A 8,137 - - -
License fee payable RT3 - 8,238 26,738 9,688
At 31 December 2011 R=-T——F
+=A=+—H
Trade payables e 8 5 BRK 144,477 — - -
Accruals and other payables FEIRERNMEHMEMNZIE 128,484 - - _
Bank borrowings RITEE 51,880 = = =
Financial liabilities at fair BATEFAERN
value through profit or loss & gt& & 10,137 8,893 944 -
License fee payable RF BT FE ST R - - 25,676 18,988
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

6. MBERERGHE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBEZREB(E)
Bank borrowings included certain bank loans that were RITEEREAESEEREEHEAE
expected by the Group management to be repayable twelve REMEREBF T =@ A kAR
months or more after the end of each reporting period. The BENETRITER - AEBEE
maturity analysis in respect of bank borrowings (with interest B E Ll TE 518 R EA AT TEIR T 18
thereon) provided by the Group management incorporating BECERABEFE)MEIEA ST
the above expectation is as follows: T
Less than Between Between 2
1year 1and 2years and 5 years
Bank borrowings RITEE 1EUT AF1E28E N F2E55F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABIT FAET
At 31 December 2012 N-—EBE——5+=-B=+—H 80,470 - -
At 31 December 2011 N-_E——F+_F=+—H 49,682 2,527 -
Interest rate risk (d) FI=Z=[E e

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied with the
then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit for the year and retained
profits as follows:

AR EH AT RBTRRRITE
SONERR - XEBHRIEER
FHREI S, - FIERE R TR
EO

R-E——F+-_A=+—H &
e EMESEFTENBERT
it FI R FA T RHE100EE
g ARENFEE R RRE &R
HI3E SRR T

2012 2011

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates FEEFH () —E-—F —ZT——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FABT

100 basis points 100& %, 438 496
(100) basis points (100) H2 (438) (496)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the
Group’s profit for the year and retained profits that would
have arisen assuming that there is an annualised impact
on interest income and expense by a change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on the same basis
throughout the year.

X SR BRI
YEEE (I BMARRE « 17T
Y S B 4 5 RAR R G
W - DR EZ Ak
47 o
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMBEMREE(E)
(e) Categories of the Group’s financial (e) AEER=-ZF——-F+=-A
instruments at 31 December 2012 =+t—HMNERTAER
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——f
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Financial assets: TREE
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABENSREE !
profit or loss:
Held for trading REEE = 1,532
Loans and receivables (including cash ERNERGE(BERE R
and cash equivalents): REEEY) -
Trade and bill receivables FEUNE 5 8RR BN R & 199,652 182,220
Deposits and other receivables e R HALEW IR 29,164 34,826
Amount due from a shareholder JEUL — 2 B R F0AR - 200
Bank and cash balances RI1TMIR S 455 161,808 147,756
390,624 366,534
Financial liabilities: THEE:
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEFABENSRIAE !
through profit or loss:
Designated as such upon initial R T R IEE &
recognition 19,297 19,086
Held for trading REEERE 8,137 =
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REERATIENSREE
Trade payables FERTE SRR 128,297 144,477
Accruals and other payables TEiR & A M E M ERFRIE 162,657 128,484
Amount due to a non-controlling FEAST BT/ A Bl FEFERR AR R 5K IE
shareholder of a subsidiary 846 =
Bank borrowings BITEE 79,931 51,880
License fee payable FEETREFE (R 22,364 18,721
421,529 362,648
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UHEREE(E)
Categories of the Group’s financial (e) AEER=-ZE——-F+=A
instruments at 31 December 2012 (Continued) =t+—HEmIAEEH
(#8&)
The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a AEEFEAN T A ESREER
fair value hierarchy which has 3 levels: BEATENE EREEIBEL
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 1 HREESAE 2GR
identical assets or liabilities. TIZME CRECTE) -
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within FE2E FIEBFBRZREN
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Hh - BREEXBEEREE
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (BP{ES) s # (B
(i.e. derived from prices). EREE)BRERSLZ
BAER o
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based E3E W IR B A BT IHH
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). BEmMBSHZzZEENRERE
BABR (T BREG
2 BAER) o
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December AFESEEEER T ——F1+=
2012: A=+—RZZERE :
At 31 December 2012 R-FE-—#+=ZH=1—H
Fair value measurement using:
AFEFAEFANSER :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Description HH F1E F2E £E3E et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FTER FTER FERT
Liabilities &fE
Financial liabilities at fair BRHER AR
value through profit or loss: & @EE :
Derivative instruments PTET R (Bfat25)
(note 25) - 8,137 - 8,137
Contingent/future R RRRE
considerations (note 33) (#71:£33) - 19,297 - 19,297
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(e) Categories of the Group’s financial
instruments at 31 December 2012 (Continued)

At 31 December 2011

6. BIXEREE(E)
(e) AEER=-ZF—-F+=A8
=t+—HREmIAEEH
(#8)
R—F——FF+_H=+—H

Fair value measurement using:

AFEFEMANER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Description B H 21 F2E F3E et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHTT FHTT FHET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair BRATER A
value through profit or loss: & @EE :
Derivative instruments PTET R (Bfat25)
(note 25) - 1,532 - 1,532
Liabilities &\
Financial liabilities at fair BATEFABRS
value through profit THBE:
or loss:
Contingent considerations  skAR(E (#1:233)
(note 33) - 19,086 - 19,086

(f)  Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

(i 2FE
AEBERREMBARRAE SR
BEERSRARMNEREREER
B FEREE ©

7. REVENUE 7 WA
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Sales of goods HEE MW 1,480,601 1,334,305
Net sales return arising from product warranty — ZE iR FAEA KR & 558 (22,409) (24,915)

1,458,192 1,309,390
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four reportable segments as follows:

EMS - Electronic Manufacturing Services

Distribution Businesses:

Telecommunications - Marketing and distribution of
products (“TCP”) branded SMB phone systems
Multimedia products and — Assembling and/or marketing
computer accessories and distribution of branded
(“MPCA”) multimedia products and
computer accessories

Gaming and Entertainment
Products (“GEP”)

Marketing and distribution of
gaming and entertainment
products

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

For current reporting period, the Group’s other operating segments
include the Fargo Telecom Group (note 37(a)) and others. None
of these segments meets any of the quantitative thresholds for
determining reportable segments. The information of these other
operating segments is included in the ‘Others’ column under
Distribution Businesses. In 2011, GEP operating segment was
included in ‘Others’ column, and is now retrospectively restated.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include impairment loss on intangible
assets. Segment assets do not include amount due from a
shareholder and deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities do not
include bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

DEBER

REE N EFHRE DDA

B RERS - BTHRERY

DI

BAEM - EHEkOHEmE
R/ EERL

% RS E - HER/HEHE

B A B miE 2 H

= R A B RS A

BRMREER - SHERIEEER

IREEEE

AREBNRE D B ARBEMERTFE - 18
HARERERE - 8D BBULERE - ]
RS RHHE TR A & HREE o

RAHEHAMNE - AEEBEMLEHHBE
fEFargo Telecom®E B (I 7E37(a)) & E A
EmaEh o hESHWAREDNEEIRE
DERE(AIEEHIE o EHEMACEHEB
BRI A D HFERS T HM | —5 - R
T——F  BERIREERSEDHBER
BAEM ] —F  BELSHEREHE
eI

R )RR RO & S IR SR BB T AR P R4
MEER - DERBREW T EEETLEER
BEE - DEEEY TN EIERK—BAER
FANMBELERAEE - DB REL NEHE
RITEEREERARE -

AEERERMTELD BBEHE REEA
AR HINHE =y SHE SRR o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8. ZHEER(E)

Information about reportable segment profit (a) BEBSIEBEFHEE
or loss, assets and liabilities: EEREBEENESR :
Distribution Businesses
ik E
EMS TCP MPCA GEP Others Total
EZ5Y
Ef Emk BRR
HERYE EBAER EBEE4 REER Hith st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERT TERT TERT TER TERT TERT
Year ended 31 December EHZE-ZE——-f+=§
2012 S+—HLEFE
Revenue from external REIREFHA
customers 787,906 158,407 440,603 48,412 22,864 1,458,192
Intersegment revenue DEPEWRA 172,973 - - - - 172,973
Segment profit/(loss) PEET/(EB) 40,646 1,026 13,239  (15,501)  (4,420) 34,990
Interest revenue FIEWA 276 - 4 - - 280
Interest expense FEHZ 1,231 3,643 5,963 - 17 10,854
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & K # 16,863 6,025 849 7,124 419 31,280
Staff costs B I 184,132 7,206 34,757 8,878 5,326 240,299
Reversal of overly provided AT B R A
custom duty provisions - - 7,796 - - 7,796
Income tax expense/(credit)  FiEHiEY (HE5) 5,951 (675) 2,307 (3,541) (535) 3,507
Additions to segment DEIEREEEILR
non-current assets 12,556 101 533 - 12,518 25,708
As at 31 December 2012 R-B——F
+=A=+—-A
Segment assets DEEE 666,466 101,946 172,450 126,940 53,489 1,121,291
Segment liabilities AHMEE 232,594 81,528 161,661 127,447 49,145 652,375

96 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited # =BR8P A T Annual Report 4§ 2012



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZIER(E)
(@) Information about reportable segment profit (a) BEBETDIH=RANEGEE -
or loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued) EERBENER  (8)
Distribution Businesses
VaEiES
EMS TCP MPCA GEP Others Total
88
g Emk i

SERY BEAEm EREMG REER Hits st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TR TeExr TEx TET TE=R

Year ended 31 December #HZE-Z——F+=A

2011 S+—HLEFE
Revenue from external REIREFHA

customers 802,730 153,766 335,088 17,806 - 1,309,390
Intersegment revenue HEPEBA 119,484 - - 5,877 - 125,361
Segment profit/(loss) SR/ (BE) 65,886 2,741 7,599 3,587 (2,256) 77,557
Interest revenue FIEWA 232 1 2 - - 235
Interest expense HMERL 886 2,700 4,805 - - 8,391
Depreciation and amortisation 37 K #4 14,335 6,877 815 1,186 = 23,213
Staff costs Elﬁﬁﬁ 161,602 6,642 35,384 1,290 1,054 205,972
Income tax expense/(credit) NEREY /(%) 7,009 329 (165) 943 - 8,116
Additions to segment .:B#/»HEJJ BERR

non-current assets 18,891 16,206 308 41,466 66 76,937
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——F&

+t=ZA=t-H

Segment assets DEEE 620,263 111947 131904 88,518 4,725 957,357
Segment liabilities nEaE 232,434 90,807 132,373 73,171 7,128 535,913
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of

reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

8.

’“"Bﬁﬂ(%ﬁ)

(b) FHEDHUWA »

% 5 5 5

TE BERBENYRK:

2012 2011
—E——f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue PN
Total revenue of reportable segments e o ERUR A AR EE 1,631,165 1,434,751
Elimination of intersegment revenue 2 EBRIUR A 35 (172,973) (125,361)
Consolidated revenue “rRE A 1,458,192 1,309,390
2012 2011
=F=-F =—FT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Profit or loss il TR BT 18
Total profit of reportable segments d o H s N AR R 34,990 77,557
Elimination of intersegment profits 3 Bl FE e 614 8 (11,995) (6,184)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLEEE -
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEREEE = (2,746)
Consolidated profit before tax 1R AR AN 22,995 68,627
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

(b)

IR (R
55 B -
B EERAEOYE

~

"‘%IJ‘SZEE

(Continued) (#8)
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments wMEDENEELEE 1,121,291 957,357
Elimination of intersegment receivables 2B FE Y I K 6 (259,574) (185,070)
Elimination of unrealised profits REIR m FIH A (11,995) (6,798)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLESHE :
Amount due from a shareholder FEI — 2 IR FIA = 200
Deferred tax assets FEETIBE 12,174 5,841
Consolidated total assets HEBERE 861,896 771,530
2012 2011
=F-=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable segments e D Ef R EAaEE 652,375 535,913
Elimination of intersegment payables 5> BB E B FRIE I 35 (259,574) (185,070)
Elimination of unrealised profits IR IR v 1 8 = (614)
Unallocated amounts: RAOMLEHE :
Bank borrowings RITEE 79,931 51,880
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIB A E 25,383 21,446
Consolidated total liabilities IrEBERRE 498,115 423,555
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZIERE)
(c) Geographical information: (c) HEEFR :
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Revenue A

Germany =k 292,457 249,733

The People’s Republic of China REE A RAFE ([ R (BEES)

(the “PRC”) (including Hong Kong) 285,793 242,103
The United States of America e 231,106 227,939
Switzerland I+ 200,983 190,135
United Kingdom B 68,753 100,269
Italy BAN 99,965 69,084
Mexico = P8 & 47,803 55,038
France EE 65,638 37,572
Others =) 165,694 137,517
Consolidated total frE MR 1,458,192 1,309,390

2012 2011
—B-=F —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Germany %= 16,254 16,628
The PRC (including Hong Kong) HRE(BIERE) 86,992 73,982
The United State of America ESE 56,793 69,841
Others Hih 3,496 171
Consolidated total IRE KRR 163,535 160,622
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based 27| [R BRI - WARAEP
on the locations of the customers. FRER B R LE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.
(d) Revenue from major customers:
An analysis of revenue from major customers which account

7 HPE R (&)

(d) REEZEFHWA :
(A EERAI0%HA ENEER

for over 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as PWADHAT :
follows:
2012 2011
—E2-C-F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
EMS segment BT RERE DI
Customer a ZFa 157,526 174,960
Customer b ZFb N/A RiE A 207,490
Customer ¢ ZFc 200,585 188,382
Distribution Businesses DEEK-SHEBERR
- MPCA segment E 2 3D
Customer d ZFAd 189,780 132,816
9. OTHER INCOME 9. EHfttltA
2012 2011
—B—=F —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAT
Bank interest income RITHEWA 280 235
Discount on acquisition (note 37(a)) W BT (5237 (@) 1,459 =
Unrealised fair value gain on REIELTA T AN AR
derivative instruments - 1,199
Realised gain on derivative instruments BERITET A = 1,132
Fair value gain on financial liabilities BEAFEFABZNSRARE
at fair value through profit or loss NFEWE = 1,109
Sales of scrap materials SHE R 1,838 T
Reversal of overly provided custom AR R B E D
duty provisions 7,796 -
Others Hih 4,313 3,049
15,686 7,501
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

10.

11.

FINANCE COSTS 10. AEKRA
2012 2011
=F—=-F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Wholly repayable within five years: BREFABHEE :
Bank overdraft interest RITIBZ AL 1 1
Bank loans interest RITEFHFE 1,081 986
Interest on import/export loans A ERFE 581 394
Interest on factoring loans HERBUBESRFIE 5,548 4,310
Other interest expenses HaF 2Rz 3,643 =
Not wholly repayable within five years: BERAEFABREER :
Other interest expenses HiaF 2Rz = 2,700
10,854 8,391
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FTBHiMYx
2012 2011
—E-—f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEATH I — BB ETE
Provision for the year FEERE 5,823 6,935
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHBERE (815) (512)
5,008 6,423
Current tax — Overseas BPEARRIE — 4N
Provision for the year FEREE 3,083 3,876
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 869 -
3,952 3,876
Deferred tax (note 34) RIEFRIE(H72#34) (5,453) (2,183)
3,507 8,116
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices
in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

Frie®ip % (&)
AEERBEFRAGETERBE SH - &
16.5%(=F——%F : 16.5%) (T E511E
BATERERE -

H Ay 75 FERTOR N TR IR B R IR A %
BELAEBRKEMKRE - REEWIRT
B 2EREFE

TSR E0 & BRI Bl AT R TR LA BB RIS RS
BERETE HERNAT

2012 2011
—B2—=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Profit before tax R B B Al 22,995 68,627
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate B E16.5%(ZF——F : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) ATE ARG 3,794 11,323
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBIRARNT G2 (9,416) (4,027)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible AT HIFH 5 & BT TS 2 28 13,394 7,154
Tax effect of temporary differences MERERERNMBHE
not recognized 121 (36)
Tax effect of offshore profits that are not taxable /8 =R i B 22 i 1| O T 78 5 28 (4,986) (5,362)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR(BREEE) 54 (512)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ABARE R IEEERN
not previously recognised iR 2 (335) (1,499)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised NHESR K E) A TH 1B BB T TS S & 1,891 480
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AR TR ERE (1,010) 595
Income tax expense FSEIF X 3,507 8,116
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

12. FERF

AEBFEHENEMG G A TEE

the following: EERFAT -
2012 2011
—B—C=F = —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Amortisation of intangible assets (included T A

in selling and distribution expenses) GTAHE R D #ERAX) 13,281 8,394
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R & 1,852 1,233
Allowance for receivables, net (note 23) e GRIB R FRA(HT2723) 1,147 1,416
Cost of goods sold (Note (j)) SHERK AR AT D)

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAN 1,166,566 1,031,503

Allowance for inventories FEEE 33,143 18,432

Reversal of allowance for inventories TFERERR (H20)

(Note (i) (22,846) (9,876)
1,176,863 1,040,059
Depreciation e 17,999 14,819
Directors’ emoluments =EME

As directors o 540 540
For management EiEE 8,631 8,253
9,171 8,793

Research and development expenditure BB X (M 72 (i)

(Note (i) 36,389 02,748
Exchange losses, net b 3 5 1R 8 505 3,693
Unrealised fair value loss/(gain) on derivative — REIRATE T BN TP (EEIE

instruments (Note (iv)) (Wezs) (B e (v)) 5,626 (1,199)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial liabilities ERAFEFABRNERABEATE

at fair value through profit or loss Bia, (Uas) 355 (1,109)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEREER

(included in other operating expenses) (GtAHMEEER) - 2,746
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEEREE 125 -
Operating lease charges KEHEER

Land and buildings T RIEF 17,514 12,781
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments STXA(BIEESEME)

Salaries, bonus and allowances e~ JEAL R ERR 228,377 196,153

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RONEFFT SR 11,922 9,819

240,299 205,972
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #H#E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, cost of goods sold includes
approximately HK$132,379,000 (2011: HK$121,045,000) relating to staff
costs and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of
expenses.

The Group makes allowance for inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount
of inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$26,489,000 (2011: HK$20,202,000)
relating to staff costs, amounts of which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of
expenses.

The total unrealised fair value change in derivative instruments are
approximately HK$8,765,000 loss (2011: HK$1,199,000 gain). Approximately
HK$3,139,000 (2011: HK$NIl) is included in cost of goods sold.

FERN (&)

0

(i

(i)

()

BE-_ZE——+-_A=+—HILFE -
HEXNABREEBMEIRARTEY
132,379,000/ 0 (= Z ——1F : 121,045,000
BT ZESENA LXEREESE
B My 48 B -

AEEHERAEBBANRRENNER
TR - BBEREEERAREERHE
MEFESHE -

BE_T——F+_A=+—HLFE ' #f
BT BIEA R E TR A4 26,489,00058
JTL(=ZZF——14F : 20,202,00087L) * ZE&
BT A EER RSB ER B
i o

METARERNTFELZSHBRBLEELD
8,765,000/ 7T (=T ——4F : zx1,199,000
WIT) ° #93,139,0008 L (= ——F : T
PEITC)ET ASHE A ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. EERhEEaTFATHEHE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) E=E=M=
The emoluments of each of the Company’s director were AKARSESMEMT -
as follows:

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits contributions Discretionary
Fees in kind scheme bonus Total
o 28 BIRER
Name of director BEiR e  REWAE a8 WAL @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T THL T THIL
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE_8-_&
T=B=+-HLEFE
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve B g - 2,893 124 180 3,197
Mr. Lee Kai Bon TEALE - 1,237 53 100 1,390
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RIWRLE - 1,411 60 100 1,571
Mr. Poon Ka Lee, Barry BRNEAE - 1,096 14 120 1,230
Madam Fok Pui Yin EMER+ - 1,096 47 100 1,243
- 17,733 298 600 8,631
Independent non-executive directors BV ##/TEE
Mr. Au-yang Cheong Yan, Peter BERRELLE 180 = - - 180
Mr. Kwan Pun Fong, Vincent Bmh kst 180 - - - 180
Mr. Xue Quan EREE 180 - - - 180
Total et 540 1,133 298 600 9,171
Year ended 31 December 2011 B2-_E—-F
+ZB=t-HLEE
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve EER T4 - 2,683 114 180 2,977
Mr. Lee Kai Bon TEBLE - 1,206 51 100 1,357
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RIWRLE - 1,379 59 100 1,638
Mr. Poon Ka Leg, Barry ERFIEE - 1,040 12 120 1,172
Madam Fok Pui Yin EfER+ - 1,064 45 100 1,209
- 7,372 281 600 8,253
Independent non-executive directors BV FE/TEE
Mr. Au-yang Cheong Yan, Peter BERELE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Kwan Pun Fong, Vincent e abited 180 - - - 180
Mr. Xue Quan EREE 180 - - - 180
Total e 540 7,372 281 600 8,793
Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under M EXX T EEESN - WA
which a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments SEEREXRBEREF AT
during the year. Y22 HE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #H#E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. EERIEBRESHFATIHNHMS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration (b) IHEBEESFATHEHE
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year REE AEENAEERHAT
included 2 (2011: 2) directors. Details of those emoluments BRE2E(ZE——F :28)EF -
have been disclosed above. Details of the remuneration of H e EXIETE - RFEABR T
the remaining highest paid individuals during the year are BFATHMSFIBERINAT
set out below:
2012 2011
—B-—CfF —E——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and allowances e KoER 5,390 4,102
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  3RRIE FIET 214 2k 172 214
5,562 4,316
The number of highest paid individuals whose remuneration B BN NI EHER &S H A TE
fell within the following band is as follows: BIAE :
2012 2011
—F-=F —T—F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0018 7L £ 1,500,000/ 7T - 8
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 22,500,000/ 7T 1 -

No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the year.

FR - AEELEREMNESLR
BHALIMNME - UERBE
D88 =k i B8 7 5% [ 1) 2 B S BB

f& e

[

A
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14.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme were held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees were each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rate specified in the rules. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution in Jan — May
2012 of HK$1,000 per employee and Jun — Dec 2012 HK$1,250
per employee (2011: HK$1,000 per employee) and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Eligible employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these
subsidiaries with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet
the required contributions under the scheme.

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the United States
of America (the “U.S.A.”) and Germany make monthly contribution
to the social security fund managed by respective relevant
authorities, which undertake the retirement obligations of the
Group’s employees in the U.S.A. and Germany. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond the
monthly contributions. The contributions payable are charged as
an expense to the consolidated income statement as and when
incurred.
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B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

DIVIDENDS 15. KE
2012 2011
—F-=F %
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FHExT T
Proposed final R (@) 8,234 12,352
Interim HER (b) 6,176 8,234
14,410 20,586
Notes: Ktat -
(@) A final dividend of HK$0.02 (2011: HK$0.03) per ordinary share of the (@) HE_ZT——F+-A=+—HIFE &
Company was proposed for the year ended 31 December 2012. R R B A AR A B AR 0.0275 T
—ZT——% : 0.038T) °
(b) The interim dividend for 2012 of HK$0.015 (2011: HK$0.02) per ordinary (b) RZF—=F  BERARAEBERTIRRIE
share of the Company, totaling HK$6,176,000 (2011: HK$8,234,000) was R HARE BB HR0.015B L (T ——4F ¢
declared and paid in 2012. 0.02&7L) R=ZE—=—FEERIMEKHAE
716,176,000/ C(=F——*F : 8,234,000/
JT) ©
EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BREF
2012 2011
=F—-F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, ARstESREAREF 2
used in the basic earnings per share calculation 2N FIEHB A FE(R % K 23,345 57,051
Number of shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ AR EERERETZ
used in basic earnings per share calculation D0k 35 3 i AR AR B 411,714,000 403,050,241

In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2011, the 10,000 shares
issued due to the Group Reorganisation during the year ended 31
December 2010 and 299,990,000 shares issued pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue have been regarded as if these shares were in
issue since 1 January 2011.

Further details of the Group Reorganisation are set out in the
paragraph headed “Group reorganisation” in Appendix VI to
the prospectus of the Company dated 14 January 2011 (the
“Prospectus”).

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did
not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two years.

EEBE—T——F+t-A=1+—HItF
EE TR METF S L BRIREER - B5f
MREBZE_Z—ZF+_A=+—HItF
EREEEAMIEITH10,0000 8% AR
15 & ZN{b B 17 T 2517 #9299,990,000 3% %
0 BZERNME=_T——F—H—H
ABELAREELT ©

FREEEAE—THBR2HEARA
AAREHMA—ZT——F—HAtOBZHA
RER(HEIRER M EEEHE]—

B

REZMEFEAR » AR BGEEFAEEH
BERE  RURZI|SRETRF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &

=—FT_—

—HF+ZRA=T-HILFE

17. FIXED ASSETS 17. BEEEE
Group REE
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and Motor
buildings improvements and tools equipment vehicles Total
BE -
1t HE #E ER B
kgF REIR KIA ET RE @it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THIT FHIT THL
Cost or valuation BAZ G E
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——%—H—H 12,000 8,499 105,634 8,941 1,531 136,605
Additions BE = 846 17,037 1,711 26 19,620
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — KB AR
(note 37(b)) (H1:#37(b)) - - - 680 = 630
Elimination of accumulated 2T ERH
depreciation (480) - - - - (480)
Gain on property revaluation MEBGBNR 5,980 - - - - 5,980
Disposals HE = = (338) = = (338)
Exchange differences B HERE - 235 2,185 99 26 2,545
At 31 December 2011 and RZZE—4%+_H
1 January 2012 =t+—BR-FT—-F
—A—H 17,500 9,580 124,518 11,431 1,583 164,612
Additions BE - 1,108 12,645 2,957 1562 16,862
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wik B AR
(note 37(a)) (Hi5237(5)) = 45 489 324 = 858
Elimination of accumulated ZEERH
depreciation (700) - - - - (700)
Gain on property revaluation MEBBNE 8,200 - - - - 8,200
Disposals HE = = (44) (93) - (137)
Exchange differences R - 43 327 47 3 420
At 31 December 2012 RZZT——4F
+-R=1+—H 25,000 10,776 137,935 14,666 1,738 190,115
Accumulated depreciation i E
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——%—H—H - 3,808 62,118 6,227 1,128 73,281
Charge for the year EEHE 480 1,564 11,571 1,079 125 14,819
Elimination on revaluation B (480) - - - - (480)
Written back on disposals HERE = = (338) - - (338)
Exchange differences B =5 - 102 1,329 81 15 1,527
At 31 December 2011 and RZZE—4%+_H
1 January 2012 =t—BRZE-—ZF
—H—H - 5,474 74,680 7,387 1,268 88,809
Charge for the year FENE 700 1,757 13,571 1,875 96 17,999
Elimination on revaluation Bl (700) = = = = (700)
Written back on disposals H ] - - - (12) = (12)
Exchange differences R - 22 243 34 4 303
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F
+-A=1+—H - 7,253 88,494 9,284 1,368 106,399
Carrying amount EREE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——4F
+ZRA=1+—H 25,000 3,528 49,441 5,382 370 83,716
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F
+ZA=1+—H 17,500 4,106 49,838 4,044 JiB 75,803
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17. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 17. BEEE(E)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as LI EERMRASEESTOT
follows:
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and Motor
buildings improvements and tools equipment vehicles Total
BE
T HE #E #HA B
RETF HEIR RI& R#&fE RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THT THT THT THT
At 31 December 2012 RoE——4
+=ZA=1+-H
At cost BR - 10,776 137,935 14,666 1,738 165,115
At valuation fE1H 25,000 - - - - 25,000
25,000 10,776 137,935 14,666 1,738 190,115
At 31 December 2011 R-T——4
+=A=1+-H
At cost [I%N - 9,580 124,518 11,431 1,583 147,112
At valuation fHfE 17,500 _ _ _ _ 17,500
17,500 9,580 124,518 11,431 1,583 164,612
The Group’s land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are REE i REFRRES - WA HIFE
held under medium term leases. EE -
The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December By EEMERTTE BB YERER(F
2012 and 2011 on the open market value basis by reference B)ERARC2ZEHUMERAR SN
to market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties MiZBRE  ERAEE T REFRZ
by Colliers International (HK) Limited, an independent firm of T FRZFT——F+H=1T—HHK
professional valuers. NFETIE °
The carrying amount of land and buildings at 31 December RZE—ZF+-HA=+—H Tk
2012 would have been approximately HK$4,216,000 (2011: EFEREEA) /24,216,0008 (= F——
HK$4,550,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated F 1 4,550,000/870) * R RETITE
depreciation and impairment losses. KomEEEESK
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B 5 R Y 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-—T——F+—-F=+—HILtEE

18. GOODWILL 18. B8
Group
REE
HK$’000
FBx
Cost R
Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary W g — B A R & (H2371) &
(note 37(b)) and balance at 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZHA=1t—HBK
and 31 December 2012 —E-_HF+A=t+—Hrk 12,157
Accumulated impairment losses ZitREEBE
Impairment losses in year ended 31 December 2011 and &HZE-—ZT—F+_-A=+—HIIFEK
balance at 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 BEBBER=_E—E+=-A=1+—H
k=T ——F—A—AMN&EH -
Impairment loss recognized in current year RARFEHERHBE RS =
At 31 December 2012 N-_E——F+_-_HA=+—H 12,157

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. Before recognition of

—HEBAH TRENRERNKER D
@EE?EHJ%TQEEZ%FAH*‘A MWEEEL
B ([ReELEM]) - RERRERE

impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill had been Al ENEEEE R HER — ERR

allocated in Distribution Businesses — GEP.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates

IREEE AL ©

BeEEBEMMAREeRZEREEN
AEETE - AEEREENEIERRAE
AR E  BRE - QRBEEN

and budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The EMEERE AEEFARRERESE

Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-
term average economic growth rate of the geographical area in
which the businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin

REEMNMST G R EENESEESN
5 TE B0 R BR F BR B B R R AR ST HT IR =R o 32
RETERIECEE BN EBLEERE
S W REF LB R K - REEF|E
MEZERBEDERBEMEREMSERDN

and turnover are based on past practices and expectations on TEH] o

market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with the residual period using the growth rate of 3%.
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for

the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the Group’s
Distribution Businesses — GEP is 20.4% (2011: 23%).

ARERBEFIERBBEORRKDS
BT RIS T (5 % 0 R AR
SREA - L ETRBA BH 0T
REERE -

RRITIR AN B 8 5 $H 575 — iz R IR 4L
EmmTEAIR S ROITIRE5204% (=
T——%F : 23%) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #H#E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. EFREE

Group KE
License Customer
Trademarks rights  relationship Patents Technologies Total
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d) (note e)
[l et EFBR v 30} @t
(Wita) (His#b) (Hi#c) (Hita) (Hiite)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL T T T T
Cost KA
At 1 January 2011 W=E——%—f—H 14,503 21,361 16,951 = = 52,815
Acquisition of a subsidiary KEE—FREAA
(note 37(b)) (Hi37) - - 11,307 17,152 - 28,459
Additions BE - 16,021 - - - 16,021
Exchange differences ERESR (370) - (83) - = (453)
At 31 December 2011 and RZB——%+-A=t+-H
1 January 2012 R=Z——%-F—-H 14,133 37,382 28,175 17,152 - 96,842
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBA A
(note 37(a)) (#1:237(3)) 3,260 - 1,909 = 2,819 7,988
Exchange differences ERER 271 - 60 - - 331
At 31 December 2012 RZE—-F+-f=1—H 17,664 37,382 30,144 17,152 2,819 105,161
Accumulated amortisation and R BHERAEEFE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2011 W=%——%—f—H 123 8,158 4,819 = = 13,100
Amortisation for the year EEAH - 4,450 3,229 715 - 8,394
Impairment loss REEBE = = 2,746 = = 2,746
Exchange differences 5 ©) = (67) - - (60)
At 31 December 2011 and W=E——%&+-fA=+-H
1 January 2012 k=E-——F—-Rf— 120 12,608 10,737 715 - 24,180
Amortisation for the year FREH - 4,451 4,307 4,288 285 13,281
Exchange differences ERES 2 - 36 - - 38
At 31 December 2012 W=E——%#+-A=+-H 122 17,059 15,080 5,003 235 37,499
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2012 WZE——F+-A=1—H 17,642 20,323 15,064 12,149 2,684 67,662
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-f=1—H 14,013 24,774 17,438 16,437 - 72,662
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:
(@) The Group’s trademarks protect the design and specification of the Group’s
“TrekStor” and “Maestro” trademarks, and were assessed to have indefinite

useful lives.

(b) License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of
certain manufactured business phones in the United States and Canada. The
amortisation period of the license rights is 9.8 years (2011: 9.8 years).

Originally, the Group has the license rights for the period from 1 March 2009
to 31 December 2013. On 8 February 2011, Telefield NA Inc., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, reached an agreement with the licensor
to extend the license period of the License Agreement of the Distribution
Business — TCP for an additional terms of five years from 1 January 2014
up to and including 31 December 2018 and the Group is allowed to use an
additional trademark on similar terms and conditions. The consideration for
the additional license rights period is based on certain percentage of net
sales of Telefield NA Inc. for the calendar year 2014 to 2018 with annual
minimum guaranteed amounts increased progressively throughout the five
calendar years.

At initial recognition in 2011, the cost of the license rights was based on
the fair value of license fee payable of approximately HK$16,021,000. The
discount rate used was 18.3%. The license fee payable is subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

(c) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer
relationship is 4.5 — 6 years (2011: 5 — 6 years).

(d) Patents represent certain registered patents and patents under registration
process in relation to design and utility of the portable gaming console. The
amortisation period of patents is 4 years (2011: 4 years).

(e) Technologies represent GPS and modem technologies. The Group has
offered several GPS and modem product for target vertical applications. The
amortisation period of technologies is 3 years.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
intangible assets. The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets
have been determined on the basis of the value-in-use of CGUS
in which the relevant assets belong. The discount rates used in
measuring value-in-use ranging from 18% to 25% (2011: 20% to
24%).

114 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited srEEK2 2 562 2 3 Annual Report 3§ 2012

19.

BREEE)

(@) 7N 5= B /) A2 AR Z AL [ TrekStor | K[ Maestro |
RIERRET ARG - A ETh1E - AR AEH
A AR o

(o) B EEEBRNEAEEE THKE
X SR B A [ RCA I P IZ M AE R o 5T iE it
SHERAR0.8F (=T ——4F : 9.85F) °

AEBRROSFER-SSNF=A—H
E2E—=F+"A=+-—H R _ZT——
FZANR  AEEZEKE R R Telefield
NA Inc. BRI AR e - IERDSHER —
EAEMNET RS ERERST - B
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R R A E A — AR R AZ o FESMEF
FEESHNRENRE-_TS—NFE_T
— \EEFTelefield NA Inc. #5EFEE T A
DEtE - HEESRERESERAEBSE
MR o

RZT——FNIETERE - BT AIRE
T EE AT EL /16,021,000 T 5T
& - AETEITIRE 518.3%  FE K4
AR B H BRI R AT 2 o

(©) BEERREEEBEHAIIBEAREREBKE
BE T HAHE 5 0 AN B R AR MO SR A I35 o
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5Z264F) °
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(©) P 18 2 B3R E AL 2R 48 (GPS) R AL £ i ©
AEERBEEERAREE TE2REMR
BRBRICER - RiA#EHEA3F
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EfBHNREELESMMEREBET
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

E-T——HF+-_A=+—HItFE

20. AMIBRARMNEE

EA/NG

Unlisted investment, at cost

ELEMRE - ARA

2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
3,171 3,171

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

FEW (R B AR FEARER - £

BMEIEEER

HE o

R-T——F+-A=+—BARAHNH
BARRELT

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ELRARES
MEAREH HMRY/ HUBE  BRORMERA RER/HZEAASNL TEEEK
Direct Indirect
Ef [
Telefield Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 410,000 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
(“BV.L) of US$1 each RAZR
EBRA#HS 410,000k BREE1ETH
Rk
Able Trend Technology Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 90%  Design of electronic components
RBMRARAR &R of HK$1 each #EFH
10,0005 BREE1ETH
Affonso Limited B.V.I. 500 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
RBRTES of US$1 each REER
500B B R EE 1T
Aiko Products Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Trading of electrical appliances,
URERERAT i of HK$1 each provision of consultancy and
10,000 R EE 1A T agency services
LRk EX85  REERRARRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. RHEBARNRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as RZE—=—F+= A=+—HBARATIHH
follows: (Continued) BRABIFEWT : (&)

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ELRARRER
WEARER HMAL/ RLBH BETRAZRE REE/HZENAML TEEHR
Direct Indirect
Ef 3
Alagona Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
RERAHS of US$1 each REZR

1REREEIZTHERR

Atlinks International Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Inactive
& of HK$1 each ki 37
1REREEIETHERR

Bracciano Limited B.V.IL 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
RBRTES of US$1 each REBR

1REREEIETHERR

Calibre Holdings Limited B.V.IL 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
RBRTEE of US$1 each REER
IREREEIETHERR
Circuit Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Property investment
& HK$1 each NERE
10,000 BRAE1ETH
Ease Able Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
HERERAA A of HK$1 each REER

REREEIATHEER

Fargo Telecom Asia Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 53% Investment holding and trading of
BE of HK$1 each telecommunication products
10,000 BAREE1 AT REERNEAERES
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B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

E-T——HF+-_A=+—HItFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. AMIBARMNERE(E)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows: (Continued)

RIBE——F+ - A=+—HARAGIHMH

BARFEBNT : (8)

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ELRARRER
WEARER HMAL/ RLBH BRTRAZRE R/ HATENENL  TEEH
Direct  Indirect
Ef 3
Fargo Telecom Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1,068,830 ordinary shares = 53%  Investment holding
RERAHS of US$1 each REZR
1,063 830/ SR EE 1% T4
LAk
Fargo Telecom Technologies India 50,000 equity shares - 53%  Trading of telecommunication
Private Limited 0E of Rs.10 each products
50,000 & K& 10/ L ) EHERES
ERR
GAEMS., Inc. USA. 13,265 shares at - 51%  Design, development, trading,
e no par value distribution and sale of
13,265 R EE AR (D mobile electronic gaming and
entertainment systems
nHEFEBRRE RSN R
% BE DHREE
Gabrio International Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
EERAHS of US$1 each REER
REREEIETHTER
GAEMS International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary share = 51%  Trading, distribution and sales of
&b of HK$1 each mobile electronic gaming and
1,000 8 REE1ETH entertainment systems
LRk RYEFEBRREZFNEE
PHERBEE
Macar Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
EERAMS of US$1 each RERR
1REREEIZTHERR
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B 5 R Y 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &

20.

=—T—

x=—=

—HF+ZRA=T-HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

20.

RE B AR ARE (&)

R-B——F+ A =+—HBHAERAAM
BARFEBOT : (8)

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ElEREEER /
WEARER MR/ R BRTRAZRE REE/HZENAML TTEHR
Direct Indirect
Ef B
Maestro Wireless Holdings Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares = 53%  Not yet commence business
RBRIES of US$1 each MRERZER
100R B REEIETH
il
Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares = 53%  Trading of modems and related
ARRERHBRAF B of HK$1 each parts for telecommunications
100 ERAEEIATLH products
LAk EESMERMARBAER
TREE
Metro Creator Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
AEERAH B of HK$1 each RE#R
10,0008 B R EE1ETTH
i
Modern Channel Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Development of electronic
MBBRAR] &b of HK$1 each medical devices
10,000 R EE1ETTH FEBTRERR
Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding and trading
HERRAR i of HK$1 each REBRRES
5,000,008 &R A {E 1B TTH)
Smart Gears Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares = 53%  Investment holding and trading of
MARBRARAR Bis of HK$1 each plastic parts for telecommunication

100RGREE1ETH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

R B ATNRE (&)
RIBE——F+ - A=+—HARAGIHMH
BARFBOT  (8)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20.
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as
follows: (Continued)

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ELRARRER
WEARER HMAL/ RLBH BRTRAZRE REE/HZENAML TEEHR
Direct  Indirect
Ef 3
Space Wisdom Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share = 100%  Inactive
BiARA RERAHS of US$1 each g 37
1REREEIZTHE AR
Telefield ADSAT Limited Hong Kong 15,000 ordinary shares = 67% Investment holding
& of HK$1 each REPRR
15,0008 G R EEETTH
EEk
Telefield Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
FEGABRAR i of HK$1 each REER
REREEIATHE AR
Telefield GAEMS Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
& of HK$1 each KA
1REREEIATHE AR
Telefield Japan Inc. Japan Share capital of = 100%  EMS marketing and agency
BA JPY9,500,000 services
#&#9,500,0008 EFRERBTSHEERRERS
Telefield Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong 700,000 ordinary shares = 75%  Trading and EMS agency services
PEEENRARAR B of HK$1 each BHREFRERBRERS
700,000 B K EE1 T
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

R E R R AR E ()
RZB——F+-A=+— AKX AN
BRAFENT : (&)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20.
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as
follows: (Continued)

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ELRARRER
WEARER HMAL/ RLBH BETRAZRE REE/HZENAML TEEHR
Direct Indirect
Ef 3
Telefield Limited Hong Kong 20,000,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding, electronic
HEERAF B of HK$1 each and manufacturing services for
5,000,000 non-voting telecommunications, security,
deferred shares car electronics, home
of HK$1 each appliances, other consumer and
20,000,000 &R EE1 T industrial electronic products
% Bk 15,000,000 REER B R% - REET
BREEIATHERS Em 7% HfRERIX
BEER ETEMME THERS
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Trading and development of
HEREENERAA &b of HK$1 each electronic medical devices
1, 000R SR EETH ETEARERSRNY
i
Telefield Medical Imaging Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Not yet commence business
mEEENGER AT &k of HK$1 each UEEEESS
1REREEIATHEBR
Telefield NA Inc. USA. Share capital of = 100%  Trading of business telephone
e US$2,000,000 system
1&72,000,000% T BEEHEZNES
Telefield SAT Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
B of HK$1 each REER
1REREEIETHE R
Telefield TrekStor S.a.r.l. Luxembourg 200 registered shares - 51% Investment holding and
ERE of EUR125 each sub-licensing of trademark
2008 5 M {125 T Y RERRREEERETE
il
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

20.

E-T——HF+-_A=+—HItFE

RE AR ARE (&)

RIBE——F+ - A=+—HARAGIHMH
BARFBOT  (8)

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ELRARRER
WEARER HMAL/ RLBH BRTRAZRE R/ HATENENL  TEEH
Direct  Indirect
Ef 3
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong 15,600,000 ordinary = 100%  Investment holding and trading
ERRARLA B shares of HK$1 each REERKE S
15,600,000 SR EE
1BTHERKR
Telefield Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding and trading of
ik of HK$1 each computer accessories
10,000 BAREE1 A TTH) REERREREGES
gl
Telefield Zen Industries Private Limited India 1,000,000 equity shares = 100%  Not yet commence business
HE of Rs.10 each UEEGET
1,000,000 B E &
10EHRERR
TK-Trade S.R.L. Italy Share capital of EUR15,000 = 51%  Marketing and agency services
EAH f&715,000EA 7 s RERAE RS
TrekStor GmbH Germany Share capital of EUR25,000 = 51%  Assembling, marketing and
f=H 1R 725,008 7T distribution of “TrekStor"
branded products such as
portable storage devices and
multimedia products
% - BN [TrekStor] mig
Em - MEEAEREEN
SREER
TrekStor Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares = 51%  Holding of trademark and
) of HK$1 each intellectual property, licensing

100k BIREE AT
LER

of trademark
FERERABERE AR
Frer s
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

=T~

—HF+ZRA=T-HILFE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and

20.

RE AR ARE (&)

N-ZE——E+-A=+—BARRATHMH
BARFEBWT : (&)

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
Bl REaRER
WBARAMR HMRL/ B ERTRERRE RER/HZRANFIH FTEE
Direct  Indirect
E# 5
Zen ADSAT Industries Private Limited India 1,000,000 equity shares = 67%  Not yet commence business
HE of Rs.10 each NARRES
1,000,000/ SR EE
10E LM ER AR
BMPEETERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Huizhou Telefield Limited (Note) (f7z2) ~ HE of HK$15,000,000 telecommunications and
& 715,000,000 7T other products
B REMERNRERHE
ERRBECH) ARAF PRC Registered capital - 100%  Trading of appliances
Aiko Beauty (Shenzhen) Limited i of HK$1,000,000 ERE25
(Note) (Hiit) & 71,000,000%7T
MR (R ARAR PRC Registered capital - 53%  Trading of telecommunication
H of RMB1,500,000 products and the provision
AR ARE1,500,0007 of software and hardware
development devices
EESAEmRRERAR
BHRERE
ENHEZSFERAR PRC Registered capital = 100%  Manufacture of telecommunications
Guangzhou Telefield Limited (Note) (#7£) # & of US$7,060,000 and other products
& 7R7,060,000% 7T EAREMERNEE
EMPEREENBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Guangzhou Telefield Medical Devices i of US$200,000 medical devices
Limited (Note) (#z#) #ff&74200,000% T BERXBNREREE
ZHREEE(LE) BRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Marketing and distribution of
Telefield Vision (Shanghai) Limited HE of US$520,000 computer accessories
(Note) (Hiit) & #4520,000% T EHRDEERE S

Note:

English names for identification purpose.

All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned

enterprises.
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22.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILtFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. AtHESREE
Group REE
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FEETRAES - LKA 2,340 4,340
Less: Impairment loss B R(E R (2,340) (4,340)
At 31 December 2011, the Group has 11.46% equity interest RZE——F+=-A=+—H A&E%
in Ades Technology Limited which is a private limited company BEEREERATM11.46%0%1#E - %
incorporated in Hong Kong. During 2012, Ades Technology Limited NCIV R i ufﬂ%ﬁ_ﬂi’ﬁh/\ﬁfﬁ
has been dissolved. Al RZT—ZF  BENEARAA
FRER o
At 31 December 2012, the Group has 2.10% (2011: 2.10%) equity RZE——F+=-A=+—H  ~&E#
interest in Touch Media International Holdings, which is a private B Touch Media International Holdings &J
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. 210% (=T ——%F : 2.10%) it - &2
AIR—RXPRHASHESTMAZNLAR
=
INVENTORIES 22, 7FE
Group rEE
2012 2011
—EB-=fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 63,518 63,614
Work in progress H K oh 26,835 32,418
Finished goods K 162,060 67,291
Goods in transit EEEm 17,836 46,242
270,249 209,565
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B 5 R Y 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &

23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

—HF+ZRA=T-HILFE

23. EREZFERERAREKREE

Group REE
2012 2011
—B—=F == ——5F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ez F#ET THET
Trade receivables JEWE Z R @) 199,652 172,934
Bill receivables BN E (b) = 9,286
199,652 182,220
Notes: Bt -
(@) The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. During the (a) AEERESFEUEEFNH#ETEE - B

year, the credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each customer

has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, payment in advance

is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the

directors.

The Group’s aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date, and

FR - FEH-—RNFIOREI0K - BF
BEFHAEESEERE - HEF —RARN
I o N5 B B0 e AR UR ] 6 B KRB
FIBABERE - EETEHIRMBIEER -

AEEIZ R HR R E 5 8RR (R B

net of allowance, is as follows: BRI
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fax FHT
0 to 90 days 0ZE90K 190,098 166,392
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 3,328 3,960
181 to 365 days 181E365K 4,403 1,702
Over 365 days 365K E 1,823 880
199,652 172,934

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables during the year is set out

below:

NERRUE 5 RFRBEOE RN T

2012 2011
—2-—-F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
At 1 January R—A—8 3,635 5,862
Allowance for the year FERE 1,147 2,164
Reversal for the year FER M - (748)
Bad debt written off i sH AR (1,147) (3.679)
Exchange difference 1) - 36
At 31 December ®n+=A=+—8H 3,635 3,635
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23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Group (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of approximately HK$41,848,000
(2011: HK$33,398,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. An aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

23.

W E 5 R ERRE(E)

REE ()
Hat
(@) (%)

R=ZZT—=—F+=-A=+—08 EBKEZ
5 BR A #41,848,0008 L (ZF — — &
33,398,000/ 7T ) Bl AR B AR ME © %
FRHEHEBURFPAR  REMHWE
FER TR - ZERNE SRR RR AT

:
2012 2011
—B——f —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Up to 3 months =EAR 33,099 28,217
Over 3 months =@AE 8,749 5,181
41,848 33,398

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in

AEBERWE S ERFREENATIIE S

the following currencies: 18 :
2012 2011
—EB——F —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
United States dollar ETT 149,658 164,939
Hong Kong dollar BIT 1,425 560
Renminbi AREE 1,259 -
Euro E o 45,877 7,091
Others HAth 1,433 344
Total st 199,652 172,934

Bill receivables are receivable within 3 months after the end of reporting
period.

() MR ZAN $R e B AR T = 8 A A URER
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. BEf{RE > ReRHEMERTIE
RECEIVABLES
Group REE
2012 2011
—¥--—F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Prepayments TR EUIR 3,185 5,102
Deposits b 5,518 6,724
Factoring receivables from bank AR Eh i R R 1T FRIE 13,470 24,490
Purchase deposits BEZE 19,261 21,719
Other receivables H A fEUGRIA 10,176 3,612
51,610 61,647
25. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 25. {T£IR
Group rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
At fair value EATE
Currency option — assets ¥R —&E - 116
Forward contracts — (liabilities)/assets REEH—(AE) BE (8,137) 1,416
(8,137) 1,632

The Group utilises the currency option and forward contracts to
mitigate currency exposure of loans to subsidiaries and purchases
denominated in foreign currencies. These instruments enabled the
Group to have short position in Euro (“EUR”) and long position in
United States dollar (“USD”). The contract amounts of the option
and forward contracts are EUR2,000,000 (2011: EURS3,000,000)
and EUR12,500,000 (2011: EUR2,500,000) respectively.
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DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 25.

Group (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s currency option is estimated by its
value at maturity date that is close to the end of reporting period.
The fair value of the Group’s forward contracts are estimated
using Binomial Option Pricing Model (2011: Black-Scholes Options
Pricing Model) and are based on the valuation performed by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuer. The key assumptions used are as follows:

PTETRAGR)

AEEGE)
AEBENEEHEA T ERELRSH
AWE BB EEMGHS - AEEEHED
WATFEMNAZEASREETEREX(ZZ
—— % AR -SRI EEERN)
et HEERB HEHEMITHET
HERDFETHMEE - IAEERRW
T

2012 2011

Forward contracts =HIEE —E——F — T4

Average strike exchange rate (EUR/USD) Fi9tp e E X (BT, %ET) 1.25 1.38

Time to expiration BN 0.038 -0.501 0.049-0.301

years years

0.038 -0.5014F 0.049-0.3014F

USD risk free rate F TR\ N & 0.137% 0.10%
AMOUNT DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER 26. BEWRRFMIE

Group REH

2012 2011

—E-—F —T—%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Due from Telefield Charitable Fund Limited WP EZREESBRAFEIA = 200

The amount due from Telefield Charitable Fund Limited is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

BT ZEEESERAFFNA/SER
- R REETEFY -
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27. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 27. RITRBREER
The cash and cash equivalents of the Group and Company are AEERARAFNRERRSEEDNA
as follows: NE
Group Company
rEH KAHE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F T —F -B--F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT FET FHIT
Cash on hand FHERE 618 301 - =
Cash in transit TR E 6,077 - - -
Cash at bank RITINE 155,113 147,455 4,079 12,985
Cash and cash equivalents RireHenERNRE K
in the consolidated statement BEEEY
of cash flows 161,808 147,756 4,079 12,985
The bank and cash balances of the Group and Company are REBRARRIKA TS EMESERIRTT
denominated in the following currencies: NI SR
Group Company
AEH RATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B——-F —T——F B —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHTT FET FHIT
United States dollar ETT 68,533 40,931 - =
Hong Kong dollar BT 21,179 29,289 4,079 12,985
Renminbi AR & 63,102 59,625 - =
Euro ER T 8,102 15,384 - -
Others HAth 892 2,527 - -
161,808 147,756 4,079 12,985
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The Group’s aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice

28. ENEZERX

AEERER BT ENRNE SRR

date, is as follows: BREROITIAT -
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
0to 90 days 0E90X 123,122 140,714
91 to 180 days 91 % 180K 3,624 2,182
181 to 365 days 1812365 341 402
Over 365 days 365K A E 1,210 1,179
128,297 144 477

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

AEBUATHEEIEN RN E SRR

denominated in the following currencies: HEWDT :
2012 2011
—E-—F —FT—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FA&T
United States dollar ESVH 49,874 42,119
Hong Kong dollar BT 64,002 85,324
Renminbi AR 13,624 13,342
Euro = 749 3,673
Others Efb 48 19
Total st 128,297 144,477
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29. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. FERBAREMENRE

Group Company
AEHE N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f —T——4% B —_T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FABT FTERT FHET
Accrued salaries TERRE & 78,396 72,550 - =
Accrued expenses FEiRFX 60,886 36,990 1,895 937
Customer deposits and BEES MFAWIA
receipts in advance 29,062 19,721 - -
Other payables H {th FE 5 5RIE 23,375 18,944 = -
191,719 148,205 1,895 937

30. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 30.

FEAS B BB 2 Rl FE 2 IR AR SR F0TR

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to Fargo Services (H.K.) Limited is unsecured,

interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

FERDEBIRIB RS (BB BRARKAR
B - RENMERTENRD -

31. BANK BORROWINGS RITEE
Group REE
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Bank loans RITER 56,724 26,774
Import/export loans EHOER 23,207 25,106
79,931 51,880

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated

in the following currencies:

AEBELA TG EMNEEREE

Hong Kong United States

dollar dollar Euro Total
BT EYn B #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TER TER

At 31 December 2012 R-E——-#+=-H=+—H
Bank loans RITER 37,500 1,765 17,459 56,724
Import/export loans EHOER 19,989 3,218 - 23,207
57,489 4,983 17,459 79,931
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 31.

Group (Continued)

RITHEE(E)
REEE ()

Hong Kong  United States

dollar dollar Euro Total
BT Y BT st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT FAT FAT

At 31 December 2011 R-—E——&+-HB=+—-8
Bank loans HRITER 9,667 = 17,107 26,774
Import/export loans EHROEX 10,538 14,568 - 25,106
20,205 14,568 17,107 51,880

The average interest rates at the 31 December were as follows:

Rt ZA=1t—BrFF=MT

2012 2011

—E--F —T—%F

Bank loans RITER 2.9% 2.7%
Import/export loans EHOER 2.7% 3.2%

All bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s bank borrowings
were secured by the followings:

(i) Corporate guarantee of Telefield International (Holdings)
Limited, Telefield Holdings Limited, Telefield Limited and
Telefield Medical Devices Limited;

(if) Government guarantee of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region up to HK$3 million (2011: HK$7.2
million); and

(iii) Corporate guarantee of Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited,
related company and non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary (2011: Nil).

PIARITEEORZE  BEAKEHAR
EREM R

RZF—ZFRZF——F+ZA=1—
B AEERITEE LTI SRERR -

FRERBRIZERER AR - Telefield
Holdings Limited * F Z 5 R A &
RZRESMBR AR A RE
(o

—
=

(i EARINTHRERRNERZS
3,000,000 L (=& — — F :
7,200,00057T) ¢+ &

(iii —FEIKT B A AR R A 7] & SR
R LB EERE AR A R A 7
BR(ZZE——F &) -
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32. PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS 32. EmRARE
The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are AEBERRBBEEESHONTWOT
analysed as follows:

2012 2011

—E-—-fF == —

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

At 1 January n—A—H 15,906 18,3655
Provision used BB AEHE (12,423) (11,897)
Unused provision reversed BB R B A B (2,899) (725)

Additional provision ZRIIME 16,755 15,509
Exchange differences bE N = 124 (336)

At 31 December R+=—_HA=+—H 17,463 15,906
The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or EETHHEBE T RERERPKEERE
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when B AEEAGERZE D HEEBEEMK
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied ultimate BERER - AEERLNZEEDRAR
consumers. Such kind of provision for product warranties granted HIRBIEE R EK TR BT LRER -

by the Group are recognised based on past experience of level WHTREERE(EA) °

of repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.
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33. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 33. EA¥ETAEZNESRES
PROFIT OR LOSS

Distribution Businesses

DEHET
Fargo
Telecom
TCP MPCA Group Total
(note 37(a))
Fargo
SEBERK Telecom
EfER Eim A4 £8 gt
(#77£37(a))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FTAT FAT
At 1 January 2011 R-—F——F—A—H 22,333 3,758 - 26,091
Settlement during the year RENEBE (5,864) - - (5,864)
Change of fair value during the year ~ FE A F(EE (234) (875) = (1,109)
Exchange differences BN E% = (32) = (32)
At 31 December 2011 A e = 16,235 2,851 - 19,086
Upon acquisition of R UBEFargo Telecom 5Bl
Fargo Telecom Group - - 6,789 6,789
Settlement during the year RERBE (6,983) = = (6,983)
Change of fair value during the year B A {EEH) 530 (197) 22 355
Exchange differences bE N E 5 - 50 = 50
At 31 December 2012 NZFE——F+=-F=+—H 9,782 2,704 6,811 19,297
At 31 December 2012 R=B--5+=A=+-8
Current liabilities REEE 9,782 - - 9,782
Non-current liabilities krBEE - 2,704 6,811 9,515
9,782 2,704 6,811 19,297
At 31 December 2011 —E——F+-fF=+—H
Current liabilities //w@}ﬁﬁ 9,023 = - 9,023
Non-current liabilities EmE =R 7,212 2,851 - 10,063
16,235 2,851 - 19,086
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33.

FH-—RA=t—HLFE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIRVALUETHROUGH 33. REAFEf AERNESRmAE
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (,‘E)
The contingent consideration for acquisition of Distribution ZEENFRED HET —SHEMD
Businesses — TCP in 2009 is based on certain percentage of net W%ﬁfﬁﬂffﬁﬁ@_; TNFE_T—=F
sales of Telefield NA Inc. for the calendar year 2009 to 2013 with J& & Telefield NA Inc.SHEFREE T AL
annual minimum guaranteed amounts increased progressively 8 AFEREERSENRAEZRFA
throughout the five calendar years. IRIE o
The contingent consideration for acquisition of Distribution REZEZNFWEDHELR —ZHEE
Businesses — MPCA in 2009 is based on 20% of accumulated on A2 % B AR 1 H) S A B T IR R ME 12
consolidated taxable profit of TrekStor GmbH and TrekStor Limited A F TrekStor GmbH & TrekStor Limited £
for the five years after acquisition or 10% of yearly consolidated STER A B R T F A 20% s g 18 7L F
taxable profit of TrekStor GmbH and TrekStor Limited for the five TrekStor GmbH & TrekStor Limited4F f& 47
years after acquisition, whichever is higher. The total contingent BERTBFH10% (LB SE AE) T
consideration for Distribution Business — MPCA is capped at H oo DIHETS — LI REE K EIKA Ak
EURS500,000. %ﬁf:%,mgﬁﬂﬁz%isoo,ooo@yz ©
The future consideration for subsequent acquisition of Distribution H 12 Uk B8 75 $5 % 7% — Fargo Telecom& &
Businesses — Fargo Telecom Group (note 37(a)) is based on 5 (K17E37(0)) IAKRREBIIBRER —T—=
times of net profits after tax in 2013 and 2014. FERZF-NERBBF RN AGEE
o
The fair values of two contingent considerations and a future IR BB S A B R —TH A U R R
consideration for subsequent acquisition at dates of acquisition EBRULEE B Bl & R 3MEH R A ES %
and at the end of each reporting period are based on valuation By BEMEMITRETE AR A TG
results of Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm BEERET - RS HRNGEEMBTT
of professional valuer. The discount rates used in the valuations at BRI
end of reporting period are as follows:
2012 2011

—E-=F —E——fF
Distribution Businesses — TCP DIHFER — B Em 5.0% 5.0%
Distribution Businesses — MPCA DIHFETS — SRR E M N E A 2.0% 3.2%

Distribution Businesses — Fargo Telecom Group 7

4% — Fargo Telecom& &

0.1% - 0.17% =
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DEFERRED TAX 34, REHIE
Group REH
Accelerated  Valuation of ~ Valuation of  Revaluation
tax intangible contingent  of land and
depreciation assets consideration buildings Others Total
MERBHE EBYEEME IARERE IHREFER At @it

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TARL TR TATL

At1 January 2011 HW-E-—4-5-F 2,029 (11,989) 7,008 (868) 482 (7,190)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss FERHRTANRE /(ER)
for the year (note 11) (Britt1)
- origination and reversal of - BEEREEREE
temporary differences (267) 4,296 (2,426) - 580 2,183
Charge to equity for the year FEERSHIAER - - - (987) - (987)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37(b)) WE—TRMBAR (Hzt571) - (9,676) - - - 9,676)
Exchange differences 5 EH - 68 - - () 65
At 31 December 2011 and W-2—%+-A=1-H
1 January 2012 B-%-—%-f-A (2,290) (17.301) 4782 (1,855) 1,09 (15,605)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss FERERIARE /(ER)
for the year (note 11) (Bit11)
- origination and reversal of - BEERELREE
temporary differences 272 (1,152) 5,898 - 435 5,453
Charge to equity for the year FRERTIIAER - - - (1,359) - (1,353)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37(a) WEEHBAR (##37) - (1,653) - - - (1,653)
Exchange differences ERES = (51) = = - (o1)
At 31 December 2012 RZE--F+-A=+-H (2,018) (20,157) 10,680 (3,208) 1,494 (13,209)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for AT ATERE SRR R IR E B IE 48R
consolidated statement of financial position purposes: DT
2012 2011
—E-—F —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Deferred tax assets FEEFTBE = 12,174 5,841
Deferred tax liabilities EETIIBEEE (25,383) (21,446)
(13,209) (15,605)
At 31 December 2012, the Group has estimated unused tax losses RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H ' x5H
of approximately HK$13.5 million (2011: HK$18.4 million) from BEARETHEBARESET RS AR IERE
some of its subsidiaries available for offset against future profits in B %) /13,500,000 L (=T — — 4 -
these subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax 18,400,000 7T ) + A] AR Z S B
losses has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future RNRIRIEF o FHPARBETERIAR &= 2R
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of R IR ARBATIEEENE
approximately HK$4.2 million (2011: HK$3.1 million) that will expire EMIBEE - RERTIBEBREGR =
before 2016. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. T — 7S A JE W B9 & 18 494,200,000/ 7T
ZZT——4%F : 3,100,000/ 7T) o HAbHE
TH B 1R P] PR B AL S o
Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in BB AR EEEENGREEN T E
subsidiaries are insignificant. NG
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B
Company PN/
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
[ 4 S8 e T
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRI (E0.0175 7T L 3@A%

At 1 January and at 31 December W—HA—H N

R+t=-—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &R E{E0.0178 7T & @&

At 1 January w—A—H 411,714,000 4,117 10,000 =

Issue of shares — by way of BIIRGD - BBLARES

public offer (note (a)) (Kt (a) - - 100,000,000 1,000
Capitalisation issue (note (b)) B BT (M7 (D) - 299,990,000 3,000
Issue of shares — exercises of BT — 1T B R

Over-Allotment Option (note (c)) (H17#(c) - 11,714,000 117

At 31 December KR+=—AR=+—H 411,714,000 4,117 411,714,000 4,117

Notes: Hiat -

(@) In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, 100,000,000 shares (a) MARARANBEBEAXABEEEMmMS -
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$1.2 per share for a total cash 100,000,000 % & % T {8 0.01 7 7T 80 iR 15 42
consideration, before listing expenses, of HK$120 million. Dealings of these BR12BTHERET  ReREBRECR
shares on the Stock Exchange commenced on 27 January 2011. & ET R %) A120,000,0004 7T © 1t % &

AT ——F—A-++HBERIME
=

(b) As a result of new shares issued to the public in connection with the (o) AR E X ()F AR EERARBEERA
Company’s initial public offering as detailed in (a) above, the directors were BALBRITHRG - BEESEAARRND
authorised to capitalise HK$2,999,900 standing to the credit of the share i B BR 3 AR 582,999,000 ST FE A AN + I
premium account of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in full REE#RAR-_ZT—ZF+=-A=+—H
at par 299,990,000 shares for allotment and issue to shareholder(s) whose o BEIRE P A SR 2 51 AR A R R R 4 i RO AR R
name(s) appeared on the register of members of the Company at the close RIREE R R AR R K5 AR LE 5 B 2% R 31T
of business on 31 December 2010 to its/their then existing shareholdings #9299,990,0008% f& 7 + A i BT At 2% K B 1T
in the Company and so that the shares to be allotted and issued pursuant DS FEHHEEREETARN ARSE
to this resolution shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing TS o
issued shares.

() Pursuant to the Global Offering and Over-allotment Option referred to in the () BEARBR T ——F— A +W0H T

Company’s Prospectus dated 14 January 2011, the Company granted an
option to the Sole Bookrunner and Sponsor, exercisable by China Merchants
Securities (HK) Co., Ltd. (“China Merchants”), whereby the Company was
required to allot and issue up to 15,000,000 additional shares to cover any
over-allocation in the global offering. The exercise price per share for the
Over-allotment Option is HK$1.2. On 18 February 2011, the Over-allotment
Option was partially exercised and, as a result, the Company issued
11,714,000 additional shares.

136 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited srEE K22 562 2 3 Annual Report 3§ 2012

BRERMMAOZIREE RBERRE -
ARAABREEBEEARREA-—BE
FH(BEB)BRAR([BEERF)ERLE
& - Rt - AR BAEINGCE REITRS
15,000,0000% A& 15 + DA% B 2R E HBRE
P o FBEECRESGRAITEBR1.2ETT
R=T——F=F+/\B ' BHBELCAAE
BEREITHE - UL AR B #1711,714,000/%
EEINRAD ©



35.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts (i.e. bank borrowings)
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium, non-
controlling interests, retained profits and other reserves).

The Group’s strategy was to maintain debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
at the lowest as possible, in order to secure access to finance at
a reasonable cost. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the 31
December 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

35.

MR (%)

AEEEREAN A BB AEENE
BISEEEN - LBBE (T R
% BRRERSARR - AEERES
WS R A -

AEEZRRLPETEASHE - ARE
AR E 3 K ER A E R E R
HERENGEBAIELAR - BTHITH

ABENER - AEEAARKERA
BATHAL - B - EEHE - BEOIR
BEBARHEEENRE -

AEEREEFREABREALRERE
AR o (BT BAE T B E AL R AMEF RRRR
EHBER - BI5FRESEHAEE
RITEE)RBEERREEEY - LHAE
BABEARENAERED (BN
Bt (8 - JFPERRtEas ~ REDEFI R E M
&) -

AEE R RBEMSERRERR
EARLE U EHARRADISEHE - 7
—E-—FR-T——F+=A=t-A
EHRUERRARLELT

2012 2011
—E-—F =%
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B BT B AN b 3R N/A FEH N/A 7~3E

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2012 were
in excess of the bank borrowings, as a result, no debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio was presented.

The banker of the Group which provide the bank borrowings (note
31) has a capital requirement to maintain consolidated tangible net
worth of Telefield Limited at or above HK$20 million for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

R-B——F+-RA=+—H £5EH
RekReFEMBRARITEER - Skl
E2IEHRERBRER LXK -

MAEERERITEE (31 MRTH
BARREREE_S ——FR-T——
F+ZA=1+—BLLFE FEFRAA
#eFER A B & 25 {820,000,0007%8 7T 5k
PAE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-—T——F+—-F=+—HILtEE

36. RESERVES 36. f#1E
(@) Group (a) AE&EE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEERFESELEEYNIRESD
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of AR mXRGERaEHEIANE
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of Hl| o
changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) AT
Share
premium Merger Retained
account reserve profits Total
B AR E R abtRE REEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHBT THEL TAET
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—H—H - 3,171 7,898 11,069
Profit for the year EERF - - 20,661 20,661
Issue of shares (note 35 (a) and (c)) #1T1n (417235 (a) % (c)) 132,940 - = 132,940
Capitalisation issue (note 35(b))  BAN%AT (f1:#35(b)) (3,000) = - (3,000)
Share issue expenses B EITHX (14,432) = = (14,432)
2011 interim dividend and BERNZE——FhHKRER
2010 final dividend paid “E-ZERPRE - - (15,645) (15,645)
At 31 December 2011 RZB—F+-A=1—H 115,508 3,171 12,914 131,593
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—A—H 115,508 3,171 12,914 131,593
Profit for the year EEHF - - 14,562 14,562
2012 interim dividend and BERNZZE-——FhHKE
2011 final dividend paid —T——FREKE - - (18,528) (18,528)
At 31 December 2012 ——F#+-A=1+—H 115,508 3,171 8,948 127,627
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36.
()
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

RESERVES (Continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
Group Reorganisation.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion of any
foreign exchange differences arising from hedges
of the net investment in these foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the
financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set up
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings in note 4(e)
to the financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of shares
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value
of shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

it (&)
(c) frfi!
()

36.

(i)

(i)

(iv)

E-T——HF+-_A=+—HItFE

HE R E /Y
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AftHEERRESEEMR
A2 R B AT IR AR 10 T (B A
IR M B A R R AN E B
ZEE -

SN E
INEREFERIFRES
INETE IS RRELEMAT
BINEZR - LR IHZ
ERINEBREFREE
B 1 fa] SNEE 22 22 H) B R EB
Do ZFEBBIBEYBRE
B S 4(d) (il BT & 5T BUR B
I o

YE AR

R ER AR 1 B 7% KR Y T
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AR EEMES
ittt o

BABER
KEBEHZARBBKER
— NN+t FREBEEEREAR
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#i Telefield Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

36. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(V) Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable,
is appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

(vi)  Acquisition reserve
The acquisition reserve represent the present value
of future consideration of Subsequent Acquisition of
Fargo Telecom Group (note 37(a)).

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries - Fargo Telecom
Group

On 3 October 2012, the Group obtained control of Fargo
Telecom Holdings Limited (“Fargo Telecom”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Fargo Telecom Group”) by
subscribing newly allotted ordinary shares of Fargo Telecom
for a cash consideration of HK$15 million. The newly allotted
ordinary shares represented 53% of the enlarged share
capital of Fargo Telecom. As an integral part of the share
subscription agreement, the Group agrees to purchase
and the former controlling shareholder of Fargo Telecom
agrees to sell up to 42.3% of the enlarged share capital
in stages before 30 April 2015 (“Subsequent Acquisition”).
Such future consideration of Subsequent Acquisition was
initially measured at present value of expected amount
payable by the Group. Fair value change subsequent to
initial measurement would be recognised in profit or loss.

The acquisition of Fargo Telecom Group enable the Group
to enter the market of wireless communications products
and associated services. The amount of acquisition related
cost was approximately HK$407,000.
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BERBRATADIK T
RIRF BUERARMER
SRS ENGITES
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37. ZEBRLREBRME

(a)

Y B Kt B » B — Fargo
Telecom& &
RZZE—Z—F+HA=R0 " ~&EF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #H#E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. SZEBHE&RERMF(E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries - Fargo Telecom (a)

Group (Continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Fargo Telecom Group acquired as at its date of acquisition

W & K B 2 | — Fargo
Telecom&%E (&)

R ULEE B HY - Fargo Telecom&% B
MEWIER#RIEERBENDT

is as follows: (EUNNE
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired: BB EETFE :
Fixed assets (note 17) BEEEMZE17) 858
Customer relationship (note 19) BEBERME19) 1,909
Trademark (note 19) P (HaE19) 3,260
Technologies (note 19) Bt (#fiE19) 2,819
Inventories T8 23,395
Trade receivables FEUE B BR IR 9,165
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - e REARKGIR 16,020
Bank and cash balances IR1T MIR & 4R 2,069
Current tax assets BIHEARIIB & = 10
Trade payable FERTE SRR (11,117)
Accrued and other payables TEIRE A R EM R FRIE (15,540)
Current tax liabilities BNEARIIB & & (140)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) BIETRIH B & (H72534) (1,653)
Non-controlling interests IR i A (14,596)
16,459
Discount on acquisition (note 9) WEsHT=E (1229) (1,459)
15,000
Satisfied by: ATRH A RBE -
Cash Re 15,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: AU EE A H3R B 1 FRE
Cash consideration paid BfRERE 15,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BUREBRENASEEY (2,069)
12,931
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries — Fargo Telecom
Group (Continued)
The Group recognised discount on acquisition of
approximately HK$1.5 million as the other income (note 9)
in relation to the acquisition of Fargo Telecom Group. The
directors of the Group are of the opinion that the discount
on acquisition of Fargo Telecom Group mainly arising
from the intention of the former shareholders to withdraw
from the business according to their retirement plan.
The recognition of quantified intangible assets including
customer relationship, trademark and technologies, which
are valuable to the Company than the price paid.

Fargo Telecom Group contributed approximately
HK$22,864,000 to the Group’s revenue and incurred loss of
HK$888,000 for the year respectively for the period between
the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2012, the Group’s revenue for the year would have been
HK$1,543,836,000 and profit for the year would have been
HK$16,351,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
the turnover and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2012, nor is intended to be
a projection of future results.

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary - G.A.E.M.S., Inc

On 3 November 2011, the Group obtained control of
G.A.E.M.S., Inc. (“GAEMS”) by injecting cash of
HK$15,500,000 into GAEMS in return for 51% of its issued
share capital. GAEMS was engaged in design, development,
trading, distribution and sale of mobile electronic gaming
and entertainment system during the year. The amount of
acquisition-related costs was approximately HK$930,000.
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37.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &f;

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. #Z&8BER
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary - G.A.E.M.S., Inc

(Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

ECE——F+-_A=+—HIFE

1B R ()

b) Wi -—BWELD -
G.AEMS.,
HUKES B T - GAEMSH) B Ik AT

Inc(&)

GAEMS acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows: BRIBERAGBHNATERT
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: BB EEFE :
Fixed assets (note 17) EEEEMF17) 680
Customer relationship (note 19) BEEBERMHE19) 11,307
Patents (note 19) BRI (HE19) 17,152
Inventories FE 889
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 4,578
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE -« Re REMEREIE 73
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE R 12,473
Accrued and other payables TEIR & R & B Ath FE < 518 (7,671)
Loan from Telefield GAEMS Limited, GAEMSHZEER A 7]
immediate holding company of GAMES Telefield GAEMS Limited#) & 7k (23,250)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) EERIR B & (H15234) (9,676)
Non-controlling interests IR A A (3,212)
3,343
Goodwill (note 18) EE(H17#18) 12,167
15,500
Satisfied by: AT R0EE
Cash R 15,500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: A i B A O FR B U SRR
Cash consideration paid ENRE&NRE 15,500
Loan to GAEMS MGAEMSHE HE X 23,250
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BRERERIACEEY (12,473)
26,277

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of GAEMS is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution
of the Group’s products in the new markets and the BEN

RIS LRI

anticipated future operating synergies from the combination.

HWBGAEMSE AW EER AR
SEEFHM IS0 HE R TRHIAN

AR FEERRI L& BHE 2RV R
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary - G.A.E.M.S., Inc
(Continued)
GAEMS contributed approximately HK$23,683,000 and
HK$2,555,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2011,
total Group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011
would have been HK$1,317,851,000, and profit for the year
would have been HK$49,753,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has a patent infringement
claim lodged by E-Ink Corp. against one of its subsidiaries,
seeking for an injunction against the sale of ebook reader and for a
compensation of approximately HK$10.3 million. The management
considers E-Ink Corp.’s allegations are without merits and thus no
provision for loss had been provided.

During 2011, a copyright collecting agency has unilaterally
announced new copyright fees for certain products of the Group.
Management estimated that the alleged claim from the copyright
collecting agency at the end of reporting period is approximately
HK$40.1 million (2011: HK$32.3 million). The chargeable rate is still
pending for the agreement between the agency and the industry
representatives, and should the negotiation fails, the chargeable
rate will be determined by the Court in Germany. Base on the
latest available information, the directors are of the opinion that it
is not probable that the Group will be required to settle the relevant
alleged claim in full value and provision has been duly made by the
Group to cover the expected maximum liabilities pursuant to the
best knowledge of the management.

144 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited s EE K22 PR 2 3 Annual Report 3§ 2012

37.

38.

RERTREBRMEE(E)

b) WE—RBKEB LA —
G.A.EM.S., Inc(#&)
R ERREE®RE K
GAEMS & Bll & 2N & B % R 47
23,683,000 7t & 2,555,000 7T
N EIE -

BN —_T——F—A—HER
K AEEHE-Z——F+=
A=+—HItFEMRABERA
1,317,851,0007% 7T+ 4F = = H %
#49,753,000/ 87T - EEERR
HEBE T —FERBREEER=-F
——F— A —HEZKAEEER
FTeEER| MU A RACEELE - T
BEREARREENTEA -

RAAE
R-—ZZT——F+-_HA=+—H " Enk
Corp.AIASE —EHEB A RREERNE
BRE  SKERAETEHESRNHEE
EHAH|S - WERIEAY10,300,00078 7T ©
BIEEAA  E-Ink Corp.FUIEIEmRZ 542
IR - MO EETIR B RS -

RZE——F  —RKRERBRESETE
EMAEEE TERMNFRES - RH
SR - BEEEGMGAEEREREHE
P T8 RE R4 A40,100,000%8 L (= F
——4F : 32,300,000/8 70 ) ° &M HE
FARFRIAR LR A B n R T 2R Z R
B BARATEEER LR - ZEEE
MEFHERAETRTE - REBESHNE
B EERAAEETHEENEEEE
ERMNFKAATEEEEN - MAEEREE
BEERENRN  CRBHSReNEETE
I A o



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #H#E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EXREIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting AEERIMEARAEARERNT ¢

period are as follows:

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Plant and machinery TR K i 23
Contracted but not provided for EETAEREE 597 3,887
Approved but not contracted for BRUEERETA 11,000 15,970
11,597 19,857
LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. FHEAIE
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable RIBE T EEE EHE BT R RKIER
operating leases are payable as follows: EFIRERENT
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 10,926 12,667
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRAF(FEMFEBRFELEAN) 23,903 22,584
Over five years HEMNE 7,084 10,508
41,913 45,759
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHEFIRIEASERETELIRES -
for certain of its staff quarter, factories and offices. Leases are BEERAZERSHNES  KEEETH
negotiated for a range from one to ten years and rentals are fixed BEANF—Z+F - HERNHHRNEED
over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals. B WABELAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. FEEFRZ
In addition to those related party transactions and balances MR TSs R Bt S BRI E T X5 K
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had ERRIN 0 AREBREIAEBEFFIATR
the following transactions with its related parties during the year: 2
Name of directors having  HEEEHERH 2012 2011
beneficial interest Y “E--§ —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn THL
Rent paid to related companies  2ABEAFHESE
~ Modern Field Ltd — Modern Field Ltd Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve  BRfi st 4 - 210
— Perpetual Rich Limited — Perpetual Rich Limited ~ Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve ~ 8%k & 780 390
— Swintown Investment Limited ~ —BEHAERAA Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RfpREE 264 252
~ Grand Access Limited - RARAT Mr. Lee Kai Bon TEREE 288 264
1,332 1,116
Management fee paid to a BB A RFEER N/A ~am
non-controlling shareholder of ~ RREEE
a subsidiary — ZERBRE(ER)
- Fargo Services (H.K.) Limited BRAF 300 -
Sales to a related company HET—REEAH N/A TER
- Farindo Trade Services - Farindo Trade Services
Limited Limited 187 -
42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42. FHMBEHR
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EFEgR T —=F=-HAT—HAFHY
by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013. BT B TSR % o
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The consolidated results of Telefield International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2012 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
and equity of the Group as at 31 December 2012 are those set out in the
audited financial statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each for the two
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests as at 2008 and 2009 has been extracted from
the prospectus issued on 14 January 2011 in connection with the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 27 January 2011. Such summary was prepared
as if the current structure of the Group had been in existence throughout
these financial years and is presented on the basis as set out in note 2
to the financial statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

i F IR

FERBIERERAR( AR ) REMB AT
(AEEBNVBE=ZE—=F+=-A=+—H1t
FENGAXERAEER=_TE—=F+=A
=+—HNREEE  ABERERHANEEZM
TEEFTA °

AEBHE_ZTTNAF_ZTTNF+_A=1+—
HIEMEFESFNREEERR=_TETN\K=
TENFMNEE - AEMEERESHERES
AR RROR E——F— A+ +HEEFHS
BARSHARABER EMMR =T ——F—
A+HAFIENBIRER - ZEAREBRNIR
TEHBRIL SV BREE — BT E MR R M
FEOFTHIMEEMRR -

AT B E I MER R BRI T MA B

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-—fF —T——F —T-TF —TTNF —TTN\F
HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx FET FHET FET FHET
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 1,458,192 1,309,390 1,145,542 821,898 848,492
Cost of goods sold SHE AR (1,176,863) (1,040,059) (892,929) (634,166) (712,162)
Gross profit E7 281,329 269,331 252,613 187,732 136,330
Other income HAapdg A 15,686 7,501 13,243 12,371 3,819
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R HHR AR (91,515) (79,524) (73,022) (39,851) (17,413)
Administrative expenses THER (125,378) (91,562) (79,086) (52,996) (40,299)
Other operating expenses Hih G & (46,273) (28,728) (40,858) (22,507) (20,530)
Profit from operations LR F 33,849 77,018 72,890 84,749 61,907
Finance costs BERA (10,854) (8,391) (4,425) (947) (1,844)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR Sk - = = 1,596 =
Share of loss of an associate GARI=E /N ) = - - - = (17)
Profit before tax BT ATRF 22,995 68,627 68,465 85,398 60,046
Income tax expense FTiSHiF > (3,507) (8,116) (12,754) (12,731) (8,792)
Profit for the year EERA 19,488 60,511 55,711 72,667 51,254
Attributable to: UT& B
Owners of the Company /NEIEZE N 23,345 57,051 69,921 76,216 51,258
Non-controlling interests IR (3,857) 3,460 (14,210) (3,549) (4)
19,488 60,511 55,711 72,667 51,254
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- ¥&E - 8ERIEERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 861,896 771,530 520,134 471,637 372,891
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEBE (498,115)  (423,555)  (347,863) (325,767) (252,492)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEIE R = (2,759) 7,948 14,894 811 =
361,022 355,923 187,165 146,681 120,399
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Information for Investors

BREEER

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock code: 1143
Ticker Symbol
Reuters: 1143.HK
Bloomberg: 1143 HK Equity
KEY DATES

27 January 2011
Listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange

21 March 2013
Announcement of 2012 Annual Results

31 May 20183
Annual General Meeting

6 June 2013 to 10 June 2013
(both days inclusive)
Closure of Register of Shareholders

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal:

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www. telefieldgroup.com.hk
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Cayman Islands
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